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RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETEEEFHEREETES

Glossary
El

In this annual report, the following definitions apply throughout unless
otherwise stated. All other capitalised terms shall have the same meanings
as defined in the circular dated 5 March 2010 (“the Circular”) unless

otherwise stated in this annual report.

2010 Court Application means the application which the Trustee has
resolved to make to the Hong Kong courts for directions regarding the

proper amount to be distributed to Unitholders in the Final Distribution.

2010 Interim Distribution means the interim distribution of HK$4.10 per
unit declared and announced on 15 April 2010 comprising the sale proceeds
of the Disposal and available cash resources of RREEF China Commercial
Trust ("RREEF CCT" or the "Trust”). Cheques for the per unit payment
pursuant to the 2010 Interim Distribution were dispatched on 11 May 2010
to the Unitholders.

30 June 2011 Judgment means the judgment of the High Court of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") issued on 30 June 2011 in
relation to the 2010 Court Application.

2011 Appeal means the appeal lodged by Mr. Tin Lik against the 30 June
2011 Judgment on 13 July 2011.

3 May 2012 Announcement means the announcement of RREEF CCT
dated 3 May 2012 in relation to, amongst other things, the 2012 Interim
Distribution.

2012 Interim Distribution means the interim distribution of HK$0.305

per unit declared and announced on 3 May 2012 comprising the available
cash resources of RREEF CCT. Cheques for the per unit payment pursuant
to the 2012 Interim Distribution were dispatched on 11 May 2012 to the
unitholders whose names appeared on the register of unitholders of RREEF
CCT (the "Unitholders”) on 23 April 2010. For details please refer to the
Distribution Statement on page 53 of this annual report.

27 February 2013 Announcement means the announcement of RREEF
CCT dated 27 February 2013 in relation to, amongst other things, the SFC
Waiver and the Revised Arrangements.

15 February 2016 Judgment means the judgment of the High Court of
HKSAR issued on 15 February 2016 in relation to the Writ.
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Glossary
L

14 March 2016 Notice of Appeal means the notice of appeal filed by
Mr. Tin Lik in the High Court of HKSAR on 14 March 2016 against the 15
February 2016 Judgment.

2016 Appeal means the appeal to the Court of Appeal brought by Mr. Tin
Lik by way of the 14 March 2016 Notice of Appeal.

23 June 2017 Judgment means the judgment of the Court of Appeal of
HKSAR issued on 23 June 2017 in relation to the 2016 Appeal.

The Costs Variation Application means the application made by the
Manager on 7 July 2017 to vary the costs order nisi made by the Court of
Appeal by way of the 23 June 2017 Judgment.

10 May 2016 Decision means the decision of the High Court of HKSAR of
10 May 2016 relating to the 15 February 2016 Judgment.

Balance Amount means HK$10,899,727, the amount due to Mr. Tin Lik
after various set-offs were exercised by RREEF China REIT Management
Limited (the “Manager”). This amount had been confirmed by the High
Court of HKSAR in 15 February 2016 Judgment.

Claims means collectively the claims made by Mr. Tin Lik pursuant to the
Writ. For details, please refer to the Liquidation Section on page 9 in this
annual report.

DB means Deutsche Bank AG.

Disposal means the disposal of the entire issued share capital of Beijing
Gateway Plaza (BVI) Limited (“BVI Gateway") by the Trustee (acting as
trustee of RREEF CCT) to Mapletree India China Fund Ltd pursuant to the

sale and purchase agreement dated 3 Febuary 2010.

Final Determination means the Claims being finally adjudicated by the

Court or otherwise being withdrawn or determined.

Final Distribution means the distribution of the balance of cash resources
of RREEF CCT (if any), after the Claims have been finally adjudicated
(or otherwise withdrawn or determined) and after the satisfaction of
outstanding payments to creditors, reserves for liquidation costs and costs

associated with the Claims to the Unitholders.

Judgment of the 2011 Appeal means the judgment of the High Court of
HKSAR issued on 21 December 2011 in relation to the 2011 Appeal.
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RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETEEEFHEREETES

Legal Costs Receivable means the legal costs payable by Mr. Tin Lik to
the Manager and the Trustee in relation to the claims (including the 2016

Appeal).

Manager’s Undertakings means the undertakings by the Manager in
relation to the Revised Arrangements as set out in paragraphs 3.1.3, 3.2.3,

3.3.3 and 3.4.3 of the 27 February 2013 Announcement.

Original Estimated Liquidation timetable means in the 2010 Interim
Report, it was disclosed that, barring unforeseen circumstances, the
Manager estimates that the Proposed Liquidation, the Proposed Delisting
and the Proposed Deauthorisation would be completed by 31 December

2010.
Property means Beijing Gateway Plaza.

Proposed Deauthorisation means the proposed deauthorisation of RREEF
CCT as a Real Estate Investment Trust by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC") under section 104 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFQO"). The Manager will make application to
the SFC on behalf of RREEF CCT for the Proposed Deauthorisation upon

completion of the Proposed Liquidation.

Proposed Delisting means the proposed delisting of RREEF CCT units
from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK"). The
Manager has made application to the SEHK in relation to the Proposed
Delisting in March 2010. The effective date and arrangement of the

Proposed Delisting are subject to the SEHK's approval.

Proposed Liquidation means the proposed liquidation of RREEF CCT in
accordance with the trust deed between the Manager and the Trustee
dated 28 May 2007 (the “Trust Deed”) and the Code on Real Estate
Investment Trusts (the “REIT Code”) published by the SFC. The Manager
has commenced procedures in respect of the Proposed Liquidation since

12 May 2010, being the effective date of the Termination.

Provision Amount shall have the same meaning as defined in 3 May 2012

Announcement.

Revised Arrangements means the revised arrangements of RREEF CCT in
respect of certain corporate governance requirements and/or best industry
practices under GP6 or the Authorisation Letter applicable to RREEF

CCT, details and conditions of which are set out in the 27 February 2013

Announcement.
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Glossary
L

SFC Waiver means the waiver applied for by the Manager, and granted

by the SFC, from strict compliance by RREEF CCT with the requirement

to publish any preliminary interim/annual results announcement under the
general disclosure obligation under paragraph 10.3 of the REIT Code, details

of which are set out in the 27 February 2013 Announcement.

Supplemental Deed means the supplemental deed dated 27 February
2013 between the Manger and the Trustee which is supplemental to and

amends the Trust Deed.

Termination means the termination of RREEF CCT in accordance with the

REIT Code. The effective date of the Termination was 12 May 2010.

Tin Lik means the vendor, the original owner of the Property which was

sold to RREEF CCT in June 2007.

Trustee’s Notice means the notice dated 29 October 2010 published by
the Trustee in the Government of the HKSAR Gazette, certain newspapers
and other public channels pursuant to section 29 of the Trustee Ordinance
(Chapter 29 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which provides amongst other
things, that any person (other than a Unitholder) who claims to be entitled
to the assets of RREEF CCT and/or is otherwise interested in them, is
required to send full particulars of its/his/her claim to the Trustee before 12
noon (Hong Kong time) on 30 December 2010. No claims were received by

the Trustee in relation to the Trustee's Notice.

Writ means the writ of summons issued by Mr. Tin Lik on 5 July 2011
in the High Court of HKSAR as plaintiff against DB as first defendant, the
Manager as second defendant and the Trustee as third defendant. For

details please refer to Liquidation Section on page 9 in this annual report.
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Key Highlights
FERE

Unit price as at the end of the period REANEEESENER NA'RER  NARER  NARERT O NARER' NARER
The highest unit price traded during the period BRESENSRRRE NA'RER'  NAMER O NATERT O NAMER NATER
The highest premium of the unit price EBNERHEESE
to the net asset value NEREE NAZRER:  NAYNER?  NAZNER?  NAMMER:  NAITER?
The lowest unit price traded during the period BRESENSERRE NA'RER  NARER  NARERT  NARER' NARER
The highest discount of the unit price EeBNERHEESE
to the net asset value HERTE NAZRER  NAZMER?  NAZMEE  NAZRER:  NAZRER?
Market capitalisation as at the end of the period ~ RAEIRH(E NASRER  NASMER  NASRERS  NAMNERS NASTER
Public float as at the end of the period REANARREE Morethan25 ~ Morethan25  Morethan25  Morethan 25 More than 25
per cent per cent per cent per cent per cent
BB 25% iB1B25% BB 25% BB 25% 7B1525%
Net (iabiliies)/assets as at the end of the period ~ REIRMI(B(E) /BEFE (11) 20) 5.1 6.7 82
million million million million million
BE EE EE EE EE
Net (liabilties)/assets per unit as at the end REANEEESEN (0.002) 0.004) 0.011 0.014 0.018
of the period (8f)/BE3E
Total distribution yield per unit RTZR=t+-BmEREEe NASFER  NAMRER  NAYNER®  NAYRER'  NATNER
as at 31 December BiAn RiEE
Total number of units in issue s at the RERDETESENLY 464,161,000 464,161,000 464161000 464,161,000 464,161,000
end of the period units units units units units
BESEN EESEM EESEM EESEM EESEM

Notes MTE

The trading of RREEF CCT units was suspended, since 19 April 2010 and shall remain suspended until the effective RZT-—TFEMATNBAEZECE MRS (EERBR) ERB B2
date of Proposed Delisting. EEWEESESBENOEIIEE -

2 This is not applicable as the net asset value was based on the value date of 31 December 2017, 2016, 2015, 2014, 2 WARTEA - E?%é& FRE TR = ti ZE—RF  ZT-HF-
2013 and 2012 respectively while the closing unit price of RREEF CCT was based on the closing unit price on 19 April FME . = i&:%**’f?ﬁ' S+ RMEEEEREELES
2010. E‘Jl&ﬁf“’ *Eﬁiﬂﬁ‘fnﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁ

3 This is not applicable as the trading of RREEF CCT units has been suspended since 19 April 2010, being the last 3 AR AEERMERSBUNEERCR -2 2FNA+AB (&
trading date until the effective date of Proposed Delisting. H—1 % EI EERUY AR A A o

IEEFLERSWHE_FT—+F —FT-KXF  —T-H

4 This is not applicable as there is no interim and final distribution of RREEF CCT for 2017, 2016, 2015, 2014 and 2013. O ARTEA
.o Ei& ZT-=FNFHERADI



The Manager’'s Report
BEARE

Dear Unitholder,

In the year 2017, from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the

ENESENFRA
R-T—tF-A—BE+t-A=+t—B(H

“Reporting Period”), RREEF CCT's performance was outlined as below: HEE]) EERMEESHRRLOT
Key Highlights TERE
. As at 31 December 2017, the net liabilities totalled HK$1.11 million . RZE—+t&+=—A=+—H 8&F

or HK$0.002 per unit.

RREEF CCT made a gain for the Reporting Period of HK$0.9 million, °
mainly arising from reversal of legal costs provision. As a result

of dismissal of Mr. Tin Lik's Appeal and lapse of appeal period in
November 2017, based on legal advice, the Manager had made a
reassessment on the legal costs provision (and a reversal of HK$4.2

million was recognised).

As at 31 December 2017, the cash balance held by the Trust is .
HK$9.1 million.

The Trust is in the process of the Proposed Liquidation. .
As disclosed in the 3 May 2012 Announcement, the Proposed .

Delisting and the Proposed Deauthorisation will occur as soon as
practicable after the Claims have been finally adjudicated by the
High Court of HKSAR (or otherwise withdrawn or determined) and
after all of the assets of RREEF CCT at that time (if any) have been
distributed to Unitholders pursuant to the Proposed Liquidation.

The Manager applied for, and the SFC granted with effect from 26 .
February 2013, the SFC Waiver. Following consultation with the SFC,
the Manager implemented the Revised Arrangements with effect

from 27 February 2013.
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RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETFEBEEMEREGETES

In accordance with the Revised Arrangements in respect of the
minimum number of independent non-executive director (“INED"),
the Manager's board of directors (the “Board”) announced that

Mr. Jack Richard Rodman and Dr. Meng Xiaosu had tendered their
resignation as an INED with effect from 31 March 2013. Mr. Mark
Henry Ford initially serves as the remaining INED on the Board, who
may be replaced by another qualified person as INED from time to
time. A further announcement of RREEF CCT will be made if a new

INED is being appointed.

On 15 February 2016, the High Court handed down the 15 February
2016 Judgment dismissing each of the claims made by Mr. Tin Lik.

Based on the 15 February 2016 Judgment and 10 May 2016
Decision, the Manager and the Trustee had paid HK$10.9 million, and
interest amount of HK$5.3 million to Mr. Tin Lik in June 2016.

On 14 March 2016, Mr. Tin Lik filed the 14 March 2016 Notice of
Appeal. The hearing of the appeal took place at the Court of Appeal
of HKSAR on 9 and 10 May 2017. On 23 June 2017, the Court of
Appeal handed down the 23 June 2017 Judgment, dismissing the
2016 Appeal brought by Mr. Tin Lik. The Court of Appeal also allowed
the cross-appeal brought by the Manager, as a result of which the
part of the 15 February 2016 Judgment adjudging that the Manager
was jointly liable with the Trustee to pay HK$10.9 million to Mr. Tin
Lik was set aside. The Court of Appeal did not disturb the finding

of the 15 February 2016 Judgment as between Mr. Tin Lik and the

Trustee.
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The Manager’s Report
BEEARE

Further, by way of the 23 June 2017 Judgment, the Court of Appeal
made an order nisi that Mr. Tin Lik shall pay the costs of the Manager
and the Trustee in the appeal and the costs of the Manager of the
cross-appeal, and such costs are to be taxed (in the case of the
Manager, with certificate for 2 counsel) if not agreed. On 7 July 2017,
the Manager made the Costs Variation Application to vary such order
nisi to the effect that: (a) the costs of the appeal and the cross-appeal
to be paid by Mr. Tin Lik to the Manager shall be taxed on a common
fund basis; and (b) the Manager should be awarded 100% of its legal
costs incurred in relation to the defence of set-off (as opposed to
80% of such costs as ordered under the 10 May 2016 Decision). The
Trustee supported the Manager's application under (a) and requested
that the variation of taxation to a common fund basis also apply to
the costs of the Trustee. Mr. Tin Lik opposed the application under
(a). The application under (a) was allowed by the Court of Appeal on
24 August 2017, whilst the application under (b) was refused by the
Court of Appeal on 11 July 2017.

On 21 July 2017, Mr. Tin Lik filed a Notice of Motion for Leave to
Appeal with the Court of Appeal, pursuant to which he has made an
application for leave to appeal against the 23 June 2017 Judgment to
the Court of Final Appeal. On 20 October 2017, the Court of Appeal
issued the 20 October 2017 Judgment. In the 20 October 2017
Judgment, the Court of Appeal has dismissed the Application for
Leave to Appeal. Mr Tin Lik has not filed any application to the Court
of Final Appeal for leave to appeal on or before 17 November 2017,
being the end of the application period. As such, Mr Tin Lik has no
further right to pursue further appeals with respect to proceedings
relating to the Writ of Summons issued by Mr Tin Lik on 5 July 2011
in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETEEEFHEREETES

Liquidation

Writ of Summons issued by Mr. Tin Lik

On 5 July 2011, Mr. Tin Lik issued a writ of summons in the High Court of
HKSAR as plaintiff against DB as first defendant, the Manager as second

defendant and the Trustee as third defendant.

Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Tin Lik makes certain Claims, including amongst

others:

1. against DB, the Manager and the Trustee, jointly and severally,
challenging the amount under the set-off and claiming, amongst
other things, an entitlement to the Initial Retention Amount' and an
amount of HK$289,426,166 which Mr. Tin Lik claims to be refundable

by the Trustee and/or the Manager; and

2. against DB and the Manager, jointly and severally for unspecified

general damages.

Trial hearing of the Writ was held at the High Court of HKSAR from 16
September 2013 to 9 October 2013 and the closing submissions were
heard from 23 to 24 January 2014. The Claims were vigorously defended
by DB, the Manager and the Trustee. In the 15 February 2016 Judgment,
the High Court of HKSAR determined, including amongst others:

1. each of the Claims was unfounded and was dismissed in its entirety;

2. the set-off amounts (amounting to an aggregate of HK$226,596,671)
have been properly set off against balances (amounting to an
aggregate of HK$237,496,398) otherwise payable by RREEF CCT to
Mr. Tin Lik. The additional sum of HK$50 million had been properly

treated as waived and was not payable to Mr. Tin Lik;

3. Mr. Tin Lik is entitled to judgment in the amount of HK$10,899,727
against the Manager and the Trustee, being the Balance Amount,
which confirmed and was consistent with the Manager's calculation
of the balance due to Mr. Tin Lik as disclosed in the 7 July 2011

Announcement; and
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The Manager’s Report
BEEARE

Mr. Tin Lik was provisionally ordered to pay DB, the Manager and the
Trustee their legal costs incurred in relation to all of the Claims (except
for the costs relating to the set-off amounts) on an indemnity basis,
the amount of which shall be subject to court taxation if not agreed

between the parties.

In the 10 May 2016 Decision, the High Court of HKSAR determined,

including amongst others:

1.

An interest at the rate of 1% above HSBC prime lending rate was

accrued on the Balance Amount for the period from 31 May 2008 to
15 February 2016. Moreover, an interest at the judgment rate of 8%
was accrued on the Balance Amount for the period from 16 February

2016 to 15 June 2016, the payment date of the Balance Amount.

Mr. Tin Lik was ordered to pay DB, the Manager and the Trustee
their legal costs incurred in relation to all of the Claims (except for
the costs relating to the set-off amounts) on an indemnity basis, and
80% of their legal costs incurred in relation to set-off amounts on a
party and party basis, the amounts of which shall be subject to court

taxation if not agreed between the parties.

Based on the 15 February 2016 Judgment and the 10 May 2016 Decision,

the Manager and the Trustee had paid the Balance Amount of HK$10.9

million and interest on the Balance Amount of HK$5.3 million to Mr. Tin Lik

on 15 June 2016.
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RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETFEBEEMEREGETES

In the 14 March 2016 Notice of Appeal, Mr. Tin Lik seeks an order that save
for the judgment in respect of the Balance Amount, the 15 February 2016
Judgment be set aside, that judgment be entered ordering the Manager
and the Trustee to pay to him HK$287,496,458 plus the balance due from
the payment made by him on 7 September 2007, and that the Manager and
Trustee pay Mr. Tin Lik's costs of the Appeal and of the preceding action.
The hearing of the appeal took place at the Court of Appeal of HKSAR on
9and 10 May 2017. On 23 June 2017, the Court of Appeal handed down
the 23 June 2017 Judgment, dismissing the 2016 Appeal brought by Mr.
Tin Lik. The Court of Appeal also allowed the cross-appeal brought by the
Manager, as a result of which the part of the 15 February 2016 Judgment
adjudging that the Manager was jointly liable with the Trustee to pay
HK$10.9 million to Mr. Tin Lik was set aside. The Court of Appeal did not
disturb the finding of the 15 February 2016 Judgment as between Mr. Tin
Lik and the Trustee.

Further, by way of the 23 June 2017 Judgment, the Court of Appeal made
an order nisi that Mr. Tin Lik shall pay the costs of the Manager and the
Trustee in the appeal and the costs of the Manager of the cross-appeal,
and such costs are to be taxed (in the case of the Manager, with certificate
for 2 counsel) if not agreed. On 7 July 2017, the Manager made the Costs
Variation Application to vary such order nisi to the effect that: (a) the costs
of the appeal and the cross-appeal to be paid by Mr. Tin Lik to the Manager
shall be taxed on a common fund basis; and (b) the Manager should be
awarded 100% of its legal costs incurred in relation to the defence of set-
off (as opposed to 80% of such costs as ordered under the 10 May 2016
Decision). The Trustee supported the Manager's application under (a) and
requested that the variation of taxation to a common fund basis also apply
to the costs of the Trustee. Mr. Tin Lik opposed the application under (a).
The application under (a) was allowed by the Court of Appeal on 24 August
2017, whilst the application under (b) was refused by the Court of Appeal
on 11 July 2017.
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The Manager’s Report
BEEARE

On 21 July 2017, Mr. Tin Lik filed a Notice of Motion for Leave to Appeal
with the Court of Appeal, pursuant to which he has made an application for
leave to appeal against the 23 June 2017 Judgment to the Court of Final
Appeal. On 20 October 2017, the Court of Appeal issued the 20 October
2017 Judgment. In the 20 October 2017 Judgment, the Court of Appeal has
dismissed the Application for Leave to Appeal. Mr. Tin Lik has not filed any
application to the Court of Final Appeal for leave to appeal on or before 17
November 2017, being the end of the application period. As such, Mr. Tin Lik
has no further right to pursue further appeals with respect to proceedings
relating to the Writ of Summons issued by Mr. Tin Lik on 5 July 2011 in the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Furthermore, RREEF CCT recognised an estimated Legal Costs Receivable
of HK$20.0 million (of which HK$15.5 million was recognised in 2016) from
Mr. Tin Lik, on the basis of the 15 February 2016 Judgment, the 10 May
2016 Decision, the 23 June 2017 Judgment and legal advice. Given the
estimated timing, nature and probability of such receivable, full provision

has been made as at 31 December 2017.

The final amount to be received by the Trust in respect of the Legal Costs
Receivable is contingent upon the taxation of costs in relation to the Writ

and payment being made by Mr. Tin Lik. The Manager will vigorously seek
for recovery of the Legal Costs Receivable for the benefit of the Trust and

continue to update Unitholders as to any material developments.

Note:

1. Initial Retention Amount includes (i) retention sum of HK$156 million (US$20
million) held by the Trustee as security pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 4 June 2007 between Mr. Tin Lik as vendor, the Trustee
as purchaser and the Manager in respect of warranties made by the vendor
therein; (ii) remaining balance of initial consideration unpaid to the vendor
amounting of HK$64.95 million; and (i) HK$50 million dividend declared by BVI
Gateway in respect of year ended 31 December 2006 payable to the vendor
prior to acquisition by RREEF CCT.

2017 Final Distribution

As RREEF CCT made a loss of HK$1.8 million after adjustment, there was
no annual distributable income for the year ended 31 December 2017 and

therefore no 2017 Final Distribution was declared.
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RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETEEEFHEREETES

Final Distribution

After the Claims have been finally adjudicated by the Court (or otherwise

withdrawn or determined), the balance of cash resources of RREEF CCT (if
any), after the satisfaction of outstanding payments to creditors, liquidation
costs and costs associated with the Claims, will be potentially available for

Final Distribution.

The Proposed Delisting and the Proposed Deauthorisation will now occur
as soon as practicable after the Claims (including the taxation of costs
processes) have been finally adjudicated by the Court (or otherwise
withdrawn or determined) and after all of the assets of RREEF CCT at that
time (if any) have been distributed to Unitholders pursuant to the Final

Distribution.

The Manager will update Unitholders by further announcement as soon

as reasonably practicable in relation to any material development and the
timetable for the Final Distribution by RREFF CCT, the Proposed Liquidation,
the Proposed Delisting and the Proposed Deauthorisation in accordance

with applicable regulatory requirements.

Arrangement regarding the balance of the Provision
Amount, and the Proposed Liquidation, the Proposed
Delisting and the Proposed Deauthorisation

As disclosed in the 3 May 2012 Announcement, subject to withdrawals
for settlement of costs and expenses as they arise from time to time,
the Trustee will hold the balance of the Provision Amount on trust for the
Unitholders pursuant to the Trust Deed until the Claims have been finally

adjudicated by the Court (or otherwise withdrawn or determined).

As disclosed in the 3 May 2012 Announcement, as soon as practicable after
the Claims have been finally adjudicated by the High Court of HKSAR (or
otherwise withdrawn or determined), and after all costs, fees, expenses and
other payables and accruals of RREEF CCT (including costs and expenses
of the Manager and the Trustee) have been paid, pursuant to the Proposed
Liquidation the balance of the Provision Amount (if any) shall be distributed
to Unitholders on a pro-rata basis in proportion to the Units they hold, in
each case, as of the date of the final liquidation of RREEF CCT. In the event
there is a shortfall in the Provision Amount and there are additional costs,
fees and expenses incurred in the name of either the Manager, the Trustee
or RREEF CCT which are not covered by the Provision Amount, they will

be borne by the Manager and/or the Trustee in such proportions as agreed
between themselves. Accordingly, in such event, there will be no claims

against Unitholders in respect of any such liabilities.
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The Manager’s Report
BEEARE

The Manager will update Unitholders by further announcement as soon as
reasonably practicable as to the details of any proposed next steps and the
timetable in relation to the Proposed Liquidation, the Proposed Delisting

and the Proposed Deauthorisation in accordance with applicable regulatory

requirements.

SFC Waiver and the Revised Arrangements

The Manager applied for, and the SFC granted with effect from 26 February
2013, the SFC Waiver, subject to the SFC Waiver conditions, and based on
the reasons, set out in the 27 February 2013 Announcement. Separately,
following consultation with the SFC, the Manager implemented the Revised
Arrangements with effect from 27 February 2013, subject to the Manager's
Undertakings, and based on the reasons, set out in the 27 February 2013

Announcement. Unitholders should note that:

o On the basis that: (i) after completion of the Disposal on 12 April
2010, RREEF CCT no longer had any on-going business operations
or operating assets; (ii) on 12 May 2010, RREEF CCT was effectively
terminated in accordance with the REIT Code; (iii) the Manager and
Trustee have commenced procedures in respect of the Proposed
Liguidation, the Proposed Delisting and the Proposed Deauthorisation
(all of which are still on-going pending the Final Determination), and
in the mean time the only asset of RREEF CCT is cash, the Manager
is of the view that the SFC Waiver and the Revised Arrangements
are in the best interests of the Unitholders to minimise unnecessary

costs to be incurred by RREEF CCT pending the Final Determination;

° SFC Waiver: the Manager has applied to the SFC, and has been
granted with effect from 26 February 2013, the SFC Waiver, from
strict compliance with requirement for RREEF CCT to publish
preliminary interim results/annual results announcement under the
general disclosure obligation under paragraph 10.3 of the REIT Code,
subject to the SFC Waiver conditions set out in the 27 February 2013

Announcement;

WMEEMT—FAERERBRESR  BUEL
MRS R BUE R R ENR R - BEA

EEEREREERTE EAEANTNERT
BRBEXMMENESEMFE NGBS -

EERRRERRTH
ERARSHHE LEZRR-F-—=4-5
“HEE RSB E R RN I RE
T-=4-A-+HLAAEHAHERT - &

73
I EHRHEESR EXRR-_TE—=F
ZAZTEtHASHNEE ARGE RIEZ

REMANREAT  ERAB-ZE—=%F_"A4
“tERAEERERRLE B2 EUBAA
EEE

e ER:((HEFHRE-Z-TFMA+Z
BElkiAEERMERS T BAEEMEF
%@%%%i%@ﬁé?mégﬁm
EESE_Z-ZFRAAT_HERR
FHEREFEFESTRERRRL
(INEBEARXTAEREFRARGE
B BUH LT 2@ MEUE X EE

B TE(—RIDEET  AEFREH
E) A BREFRHEESEAMNE
ERBe BEBARREESHEAEL

RBELHTAESEMUBBANRERN
= hEERAESFREHE SRR
BEEHEESERENTLEERARE

%
A
\
|
_m‘
o
+
ﬁ
ini|
S
i
ey
=

—=%=A
“TtHtRHEEEESEREEERER
THRREFEMEREGTESTUE
103RFIMEN —REBEEETER
FOTRMPRREE " FEEBEN—RR



RREEF China Commercial Trust

(b)

(c)

Deed: to implement the Revised Arrangement set out in paragraph
3.3.2 of the 27 February 2013 Announcement, on 27 February 2013,
the Manager and the Trustee entered into the Supplemental Deed
(see paragraph 5 of the 27 February 2013 Announcement for further

details).

Amendment of the Trust Deed pursuant to the Supplemental °

minimum number of INEDs: with effect from 27 February
2013 and subject to the Manager's Undertakings, RREEF CCT
will have one INED on the Board, instead of three as currently

required;

requirement under the authorisation letter and the (b)
best industry practice pursuant to GP6 with regard to

establishment of the Committees: with effect from 27

February 2013 and subject to the Manager's Undertakings,

each of the Committees of the Board will cease to exist,

and the functions of the Committees will be assumed and

performed by the remaining Directors (whilst always including

the remaining INED);

best industry practice pursuant to GP6 with regard to (c)
requirement for RREEF CCT to hold an annual general

meeting of Unitholders at least once in every calendar

year: with effect from 27 February 2013 and subject to

the Manager's Undertakings, RREEF CCT will no longer be

required to hold an annual general meeting of Unitholders at

least once in every calendar year; and

best industry practice pursuant to GP6 with regard (d)
to minimum number of Board meetings per calendar

year: with effect from 27 February 2013 and subject to the

Manager's Undertakings, the Board will hold a minimum of

two Board meetings per year, instead of four as currently

required; and

REZZBHEIRBELRER R
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The Manager’s Report
BEEARE

The Manager will continue to update Unitholders by further announcements
as soon as reasonably practicable after the occurrence of any material
events in relation to RREEF CCT in accordance with applicable regulatory
requirements, including but not limited to any changes to the Board

resulting from the implementation of the Revised Arrangements.

Financial Performance

As a result of the completion of Disposal in April 2010, RREEF CCT ceased
to hold any interests in BVI Gateway and its subsidiaries, which constituted
substantially all of the operating business and relevant assets of RREEF

CCT and its subsidiaries.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Trust recorded a profit of
HK$0.89 million. The net liabilities was decreased from HK$2.00 million or
HK$0.004 per unit as at 31 December 2016 to HK$1.11 million or HK$0.002
per unit as at 31 December 2017.

Other Income

In addition to the estimated Legal Costs Receivable of HK$15.5 million
that recognised in 2016, RREEF CCT further recognised the estimated
Legal Costs Receivable of HK$4.5 million on the basis of the 23 June
2017 Judgment and legal advice. Given the estimated timing, nature and
probability of such receivable, full provision was made as at 31 December

2017.

Other Expense

The amount in 2016 represented interest expense of HK$5.3 million, which
was determined by the 15 February 2016 Judgment and 10 May 2016
Decision. An interest at the rate of 1% above HSBC prime lending rate per
annum for the period for 31 May 2008 to 15 February 2016 and judgment
rate of 8% per annum for the period from 16 February 2016 to 15 June
2016 (interest payment date) had been determined.
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RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETEEEFHEREETES

Net reversal of provision for other payables and accruals

As a result of dismissal of Tin's Appeal and lapse of appeal period in
November 2017, based on legal advice, the Manager made a reassessment
on the legal costs provision and a reversal of HK$4.2 million was recognised

during the year.

Besides, additional provision for termination and liquidation costs of HK$1.5

million was made in 2017.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the Reporting Period were HK$1.8 million
which included the Manager's fee, Trustee's fee, auditor's remuneration,

other legal and professional fees.

Net Liabilities

The net liabilities as at 31 December 2017 totalled HK$1.11 million, or
deficit of HK$0.002 per unit.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of RREEF CCT units in issue
was 464,161,000 units. No units were cancelled or issued during the

Reporting Period.
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The Outlook
R

Proposed Liquidation (ongoing)

Since the effective date of the Termination on 12 May 2010, the Manager
has commenced procedures relating to the Proposed Liquidation in
compliance with the REIT Code and the Trust Deed and all applicable
regulatory requirements. Please refer to page 9 for details on the progress

of the Proposed Liquidation.

In compliance with Rules 11.8 to 11.10 of the REIT Code and the terms

of the Trust Deed, following the completion of the Termination, the
Trustee shall, as part of the process of the Proposed Liquidation, oversee
the realisation of any remaining assets of RREEF CCT by the Manager.

In addition, the Trustee shall ensure that the Manager shall repay any
outstanding borrowings effected by or for the account of RREEF CCT
(together with any interest thereon but remaining unpaid) and shall ensure
the proper discharge of all other obligations and liabilities of RREEF CCT or

provision thereof.

Each Unitholder whose name appeared on the register of Unitholders on
23 April 2010 will be entitled to participate on a pro-rata basis in the Final

Distribution.

The Manager will make further announcements providing status of the
Proposed Liquidation and other information, including but not limited to the

Final Distribution and the dispatch date of the relevant cheques.

On completion of the Proposed Liquidation, the following shall be prepared

in accordance with Rule 11.10 of the REIT Code and the Trust Deed:

(i) the Manager's review and comments on the performance of RREEF
CCT, and an explanation as to how the Property has been disposed

of, the transaction prices and major terms of the Disposal;

(ii) the Trustee's report that the Manager has managed and liquidated
RREEF CCT in accordance with the REIT Code and the provisions of
the Trust Deed,;

(i) financial statements of RREEF CCT; and

(iv)  an auditor’s report.
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In compliance with Rule 11.11 of the REIT Code, copies of the financial
statements shall be distributed to the Unitholders within three months of
the completion of the Proposed Liquidation of RREEF CCT and a copy shall
be filed with the SFC.

Proposed Delisting (ongoing)

The trading of RREEF CCT units on the SEHK has been suspended since 19
April 2010 and RREEF CCT's register of Unitholders has been closed since
23 April 2010. The units shall remain suspended and RREEF CCT's register
of Unitholders shall remain closed until the effective date of the Proposed
Delisting. The effective date and arrangement for the Proposed Delisting

are subject to the SEHK's approval and the progress of the Claims.

Proposed Deauthorisation (ongoing)

The Manager will apply for deauthorisation of RREEF CCT as a REIT
authorised by the SFC under section 104 of the SFO upon completion
of the Proposed Liguidation. The effective date and arrangement for the

Proposed Deauthorisation of RREEF CCT is subject to the SFC's approval.

Further announcements shall be made in relation to the details and timing
of the above events in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the SEHK and the REIT Code.

David Wyndam Edwards
Executive Director
13 March 2018
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Board of Directors
EEg

Mr. Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior

Chairman and Non-executive Director Age 57
Mr. Roeloffs has been appointed as non-executive director of Manager

since 21 March 2007.

Mr. Roeloffs, aged 57, has more than 30 years of experience in real estate
industry. Before retiring from Deutsche Bank in December 2012, Mr.
Roeloffs was the Global Chief Investment Officer for RREEF, Deutsche

Bank's real estate division.

Mr. Roeloffs received a BA degree from Columbia University and an MBA
degree from The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania, United States

of America. Mr. Roeloffs is currently based in Cambridge, England.

Mr. David Wyndham Edwards

Executive Director Age 48
Mr. Edwards has been appointed as non-executve director of the Manager
with effect from 15 August 2017 and re-designated as executive director of

the Manager with effect from 21 September 2017.

Mr. Edwards, aged 48, is Director, Portfolio Manager — Real Estate, Asia
Pacific for Deutsche Bank. Mr. Edwards joined the firm in 2015. Prior to
joining Deutsche Bank, Mr Edwards was Managing Director of Investment
Management for Rose Rock Group for 18 months. Prior to Rose Rock
Group, he was Regional Director at LaSalle Investment Management for

8 years, where he served in various roles including regional strategist,

the head of an open-ended Asia Pacific core fund and regional co-head of
business development. Mr. Edwards holds a BSc (Hons) from the University

of Reading.

Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior %4
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Mr. Edwards has also been appointed as a responsible officer of the

Manager since 21 September 2017.

Mr. Mark Henry FORD

Independent Non-executive Director Age 63
Mr. Ford has been appointed as independent non-executive director of the

Manager since 21 March 2007.

Mr. Ford, aged 63, is the Chairman of Cbus Property, the Chairman of Kiwi
Property Group and a director of Dexus. Before retiring from Deutsche

Bank in 2003, Mr. Ford was Head of DB Real Estate in Australia.

Mr. Ford is a commerce graduate from the New South Wales University
of Technology in Sydney. He also holds a Company Directors Diploma
awarded by the Australian Institute of Company Directors and is a Chartered

Accountant in Australia.
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Compliance

With the objectives of establishing and maintaining high standards

of corporate governance, certain policies and procedures have been
established to ensure that the operation of RREEF CCT is conducted in

a transparent manner. The Manager has adopted a compliance manual
(“Compliance Manual”), as reviewed and revised from time to time, which
sets out key measures and procedures in relation to the management and
operation of RREEF CCT. Internal checks and balances are also put in place
to ensure that the relevant rules and regulations are duly observed. During
the Reporting Period, RREEF CCT and the Manager have fully complied
with the corporate governance policies laid down in the Compliance
Manual. To the extent applicable, RREEF CCT and the Manager have also
complied with most of the provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on
SEHK.

Unitholders to note that the Manager applied for, and the SFC granted

with effect from 26 February 2013, the SFC Waiver, and that following
consultation with the SFC, the Manager implemented the Revised
Arrangements with effect from 27 February 2013. Please refer to the 27
February 2013 Announcement for further details of the SFC Waiver and the

Revised Arrangements.

Authorisation Structure

RREEF CCT is a collective investment scheme authorised by the SFC
under section 104 of the SFO and regulated by the provisions of the REIT
Code. The Manager is licensed by the SFC under section 116 of the SFO to
conduct the regulated activity of asset management. As at date of issuance
of this report, the Manager has two personnel who are approved as
Responsible Officers and one of them is an executive director, pursuant to

the requirements of section 125 of the SFO and Rule 5.4 of the REIT Code.
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The Trustee of RREEF CCT, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Hongkong and Shanghai

Banking Corporation Limited. It is registered as a trust company under

section 77 of the Trustee Ordinance and is qualified to act as a trustee for

authorised collective investment schemes under the SFO pursuant to the

REIT Code.

Functions of the Board of Directors of the Manager

The Board is responsible for the overall governance of RREEF CCT and the
Manager including establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievements of these goals with a view to ensure that the fiduciary and
statutory obligations of the Manager to the Unitholders are met, and that

such duties have priority over all other duties including the interests of the

Manager’s shareholders.

Having regard to these responsibilities, the Board ensures that:

(a) it discharges its fiduciary and statutory duties and obligations;

(b) appropriate conflict identification and management practices are in

place;

(c) strategies are in place for achievement of the objectives of RREEF

CCT;

(d) business plans and budgets are approved, and monitoring of

performance against those plans and budgets is conducted;

(e) RREEF CCT's financial statements are true and fair and otherwise

conform with the relevant law;

(f) appropriate risk management, internal control and regulatory

compliance policies are in place; and

(@@ the management adheres to high standards of ethics and corporate

governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial

statements of RREEF CCT.
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Pursuant to the Revised Arrangements, with effect from 27 February 2013,
each of the committees of the Board ceased to exist, and the functions
of such committees will be assumed and performed by the remaining

Directors (whilst always including the remaining INED).

The Board and the day-to-day management functions of RREEF CCT are
largely separated with the latter being in the hands of the management

team.

Board Composition of the Manager

With the aim of creating a board structure that is both effective and
balanced, the size of the Board has been set to provide for a minimum

of three Directors and a maximum of twenty Directors. Pursuant to the
Manager’s corporate governance policy, INEDs must be individuals who
fulfill the independence criteria set out in the corporate governance policy

adopted by the Manager.

The composition of the Board is determined using the following principles:

(a) the Chairman of the Board should be a non-executive Director;

(b)  the Board should comprise Directors with the ability and competence
to make appropriate business recommendations and decisions, an
entrepreneurial talent for contributing to the creation of investor
value, relevant experience in the industry sector, high ethical
standards, sound practical sense and a total commitment to the
fiduciary and statutory obligations to further the interests of the

Unitholders and achieve RREEF CCT's objectives; and

(c) at least one-third of the Board should be INEDs, provided that,
pursuant to the Revised Arrangements, with effect from 27 February
2013 the intention is for RREEF CCT to have one INED on the Board

instead of three.

Mr. Rahul Ghai tendered his resignation as responsible officer of the
Manager with effect from 15 August 2017. With effect from 21 September
2017, Mr. David Wyndham Edwards had been appointed as responsible

officer of the Manager.
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As at date of issuance of this report, the Board currently comprises a total
of three Directors, consisting of one Executive Director, one Non-executive
Director (the Chairman) and one INED. Details are set out in the “Board of

Directors” section of this report.

All Directors shall retire from office at every annual general meeting of
the Manager and shall be eligible for re-election. Unless Directors decline
re-election in writing, the retiring Directors shall be deemed re-elected
unless the vacated office is filled by electing a person or persons at the
annual general meeting of the Manager, in accordance with its articles of

association.

Pursuant to the Compliance Manual and subject to re-election, INEDs will
hold office for three years, following their first appointment (or, if appointed
by the Board between annual meetings of the Manager, from the date of
the annual general meeting of the Manager immediately following their
appointment). An INED shall not hold office for more than nine years, or be

nominated for more than three consecutive terms, whichever is longer.

The Manager has received written annual confirmation from INED of his
independence pursuant to the criteria for independence of INEDs as set out

in the Compliance Manual.

Currently, Mr. Kurt William Roeloffs, Junior, is the Chairman of the Board.

The composition of the Board is reviewed periodically to ensure that the

Board has the appropriate combination of expertise and experience.

The Board members are updated and apprised of any laws and regulations
applicable to the Trust and its directors as well as any amendments thereto.
On a continuing basis, directors are encouraged to keep up to date on

all matters relevant to the Trust and attend briefings and seminars as

appropriate.
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Board Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board have considered, approved,

reviewed and/or formulated the matters as stated but not limited to the

following:

(ii)

Financial results of RREEF CCT

Announcements/reports for publication, including interim and annual

reports of RREEF CCT

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Directors are given written notices of Board meetings at least 14
days in advance of the meetings. Suitable arrangements exist to
allow Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. Agendas and accompanying board papers are circulated
to allow the Directors to adequately prepare for the Board meetings.
Board consents are given by votes at the Board meetings or written
resolutions signed by a majority of Directors from time to time.
Minutes of Board meetings and written resolutions, together with
any supporting papers, are kept in safe custody by the Company

Secretary, and are available to all Directors.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the Reporting Period, two Board meetings were held and
chaired by the Chairman who worked in conjunction with other Board
members, to formulate strategy and to supervise the business of

the Manager, including review and approval of the financial results of
RREEF CCT, and consideration and approval of the budget of RREEF
CCT plus 23 June 2017 Judgment and 20 October 2017 Judgment.

£

23

RBERRE - SR ZRIE B R %
B BIEESRRIATEIE

(i)

EEREHEES ZPEEE

HAEzRE  BE(REEERMES
Sz HHmERFR)
BERgmERAkEREIR
EEEEEHAMNEL TR IR

EFERhAHETSRNERRA
REMBEERS REFRLBIFRA
MAHABESZEFREZNREN - 218
LREMNESEXHERETES N
AAEFHEARESZSRFLARE
w-EEENRAENERESFE AN
RERRITHARZEEETEENE
ERFARDNG - -EZFERLBLER
RBRBEREFEEXN - AARWE
ZERE  UHAAEEEH -

BEEHELH

RIBEHE GRITMAEFTESH
EZEATIFIN HAESGLEAHEMGES
ERERAHTRBELEREEANE

B EREEHNLAREFHEESH

MBEE EERMEETERHBEER
ENEE ULABE_-_FT—EFXA
ZH=ZBEAER Tt FTAZTAN

R o



RREEF China Commercial Trust 2017 Annual Report
EETFEBEEMEREGETES ZT—LFFER

i

WEMR HAFRMAE=SgH -EF
BERERERGEN L EDLEHINNT

Up to the end of the Reporting Period, two Board meetings were held. ES

B

The attendance records of each member of the Board at the said Board

meetings are set out below:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

ERFIFNTES

Mr. Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior N y
Kurt Willian ROELOFFS, Junior fc 4

Executive Director
WITES
Mr. Rahul GHAI (resigned on 15 August 2017) V X

Rahul GHAI A (R=—Z2—tF \A+HHHEE)

Mr. David Wyndham Edwards (appointed on 15 August 2017) N.A. Y
David Wyndham Edwards %t (B —tF \A + A BREE)

Independent Non-executive Director
BIUERITES

Mr. Mark Henry FORD N Y

Mark Henry FORD 5t 4
[/ |

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee EZ - BRERTHREZEE®
Pursuant to the Revised Arrangements, with effect from 27 February BEERBrLEE - E—=F_"_A=-+tH
2013 the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee ceased to exist, and its BBz ERRTHEEGENMERE A

functions will be assumed and performed by the remaining Directors (whilst  BEEEHS A T ES (ETBIEER THE 7 IEH
always including the remaining INED). TEE)BERETT -
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Disclosure Committee

Pursuant to the Revised Arrangements, with effect from 27 February
2013 the Disclosure Committee ceased to exist, and its functions will be
assumed and performed by the remaining Directors (whilst always including

the remaining INED).

Management and Investment Committee

Pursuant to the Revised Arrangements, with effect from 27 February 2013
the Management and Investment Committee ceased to exist, and its
functions will be assumed and performed by the remaining Directors (whilst

always including the remaining INED).

Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to the Revised Arrangements, with effect from 27 February 2013
the Remuneration Committee ceased to exist, and its functions will be
assumed and performed by the remaining Directors (whilst always including

the remaining INED).

Company Secretary

Ms. HO Wing Tsz Wendy of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional
service provider specializing in integrated business, corporate and investor
services, has been engaged by the Manager as its Company Secretary. Her
primary contact person at the Manager is Ms. Gloria Chan, Vice President,
Deutsche Alternatives & Real Assets, and the Financial Controller of the
Trust. During the Reporting Period, Ms. Ho participated in professional

training of not less than 15 hours.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, fees paid and payable to the auditors of
RREEF CCT for audit and non-audit services amounted to HK$400,000 and
HK$150,000 respectively.

Internal Controls

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems during the Reporting Period and considered effective and

adequate.
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Management of Business Risk

The Board meets regularly during the Reporting Period to review the

financial performance of the Manager and RREEF CCT against a previously

approved budget. The Board also reviews any risks to the assets of RREEF

CCT, examines liability management and acts upon any comments from the

auditors of RREEF CCT.

The Manager has designed a system of risk oversight, management and

internal control to identify, assess, monitor and manage risk, and to enable

the Manager to keep the Unitholders informed of material changes in

RREEF CCT's risk profile.

The Manager has also appointed experienced and well qualified

management to handle the day to day operations of the Manager and
RREEF CCT.

Conflicts of Interest

The Manager has instituted the following procedures to deal with conflicts

of interest issues:

(a)

The INED acts independently for the interests of the Unitholders.

All connected party transactions are managed in accordance with the

procedures set out in the Compliance Manual.

Any Director with a material interest in a transaction or arrangement
is required to declare his interest to the Board at the earliest meeting
of the Board at which the question of entering into the contract,

business or arrangement is to be discussed.

A Director shall not vote (or be counted in the quorum at a meeting)
in relation to any resolution concerning any contract or arrangement
in which he, to his knowledge, is materially interested. This

prohibition shall not apply and a Director may vote and be counted in
the quorum in relation to any resolution concerning any one or more

of the following matters:
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

granting him any guarantee, indemnity or security in respect of (i)
any debt or obligation incurred by him at the request of or for
the benefit of the Manager (in its own capacity and not in its

capacity as manager of RREEF CCT) or any of its subsidiaries;

granting a third party any guarantee, indemnity or security in (ii)
respect of any debt or obligation of the Manager (in its own

capacity and not in its capacity as manager of RREEF CCT)

or any of its subsidiaries for which the Director has assumed

responsibility in whole or in part and whether alone or jointly

under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

any contract concerning the Manager (in its own capacity and (iii)
not in its capacity as manager of RREEF CCT) or any of its

subsidiaries and any other company (not being a company in

which the Director beneficially owns five per cent or more)

in which the Director is interested directly or indirectly as an

officer, employee or shareholder;

any contract concerning the adoption, modification or operation (iv)
of a pension fund or retirement, death or disability benefits

scheme which relates both to Directors and employees of

the Manager or of any of its subsidiaries and does not provide

in respect of any Director as such any privilege or advantage

not accorded to the employees to which the fund or scheme

relates;

any contract for the benefit of employees of the Manager or (v)
of any of its subsidiaries under which the Director benefits in a

similar manner to the employees and which does not accord to

any Director as such any privilege or advantage not accorded

to the employees to whom the contract relates; and

any contract for the purchase or maintenance for any Director (vi)

or Directors of insurance against any liability.
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No Director was materially interested in any contract of significance during

or at the end of the Reporting Period.

The Board, including INED, ensures that RREEF CCT is treated in a

consistent and equitable manner under the rotation system.

General Meetings

Pursuant to the Revised Arrangements, with effect from 27 February 2013,
RREEF CCT will no longer be required to hold an annual general meeting of
Unitholders at least once in every calendar year, provided that the Manager
has undertaken that notwithstanding the Revised Arrangements, the

Manager will convene a general meeting of Unitholders if:

(a) in accordance with the Trust Deed, not less than two Unitholders
registered as together holding not less than 10 per cent of the Units
for the time being in issue and outstanding submit a request in
writing to the Manager for a general meeting of Unitholders to be

held; or

(b)  the Manager or the Trustee, acting in accordance with their fiduciary
duties to Unitholders, and with the REIT Code, the Trust Deed and all
other applicable laws and regulatory requirements, determines that
a matter requires a vote of Unitholders which will require a general

meeting of Unitholders to be held.

The Manager has designated an individual as the contact person for any
Unitholder who requires information about RREEF CCT at any time, and the
details of the Manager's contact person (including name, telephone number

and e-mail address) is prominently displayed on the website of RREEF CCT.
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In the consideration of an ordinary resolution, a minimum of 14 days' notice
of meeting shall be given to the Unitholders (exclusive of the day on which
the notice is served or deemed to be served and of the day for which the
notice is given) while a special resolution requires a minimum of 21 days’
notice of meeting to be served to Unitholders (exclusive of the day on
which the notice is served or deemed to be served and of the day for which
the notice is given). Such notice shall specify the date, time and place of

the meeting and the terms of any resolutions to be proposed.

Two or more Unitholders present in person or by proxy registered as
holding together not less than 10 per cent of the units for the time being in
issue and outstanding will form a quorum for the transaction of all business,
except for the purpose of passing a special resolution of the Unitholders.
The quorum for passing a special resolution of the Unitholders will be two
or more Unitholders present in person or by proxy registered as holding
together not less than 25 per cent of the units for the time being in issue

and outstanding.

The Manager will update Unitholders by further announcement as soon

as reasonably practicable in relation to any material development and the
timetable for the Final Distribution, the Proposed Liquidation, the Proposed
Delisting and the Proposed Deauthorisation in accordance with applicable

regulatory requirements.

Matters to be Decided by Unitholders by Special
Resolution

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, decisions with respect to certain matters
require specific prior approval of Unitholders by way of special resolution.
Such matters include among other things, removal of the Trustee and the

auditors of RREEF CCT.

Reporting and Transparency

RREEF CCT prepares its financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, with a financial year-end of 31 December

and a financial half-year of 30 June for each calendar year.
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As of the end of the Reporting Period, in accordance with the REIT Code,
the annual reports and financial statements for RREEF CCT are published
and sent to Unitholders no later than four months following each financial
year-end and the interim reports and financial statements no later than

three months following each financial half-year end.

Pursuant to the SFC Waiver, with effect from 26 February 2013, the SFC
waived strict compliance by RREEF CCT with the requirement to publish
preliminary interim/annual results announcement under the general
disclosure obligation under paragraph 10.3 of the REIT Code, such that

(and only to the extent that) RREEF CCT is no longer required to publish

a preliminary results announcement ahead of the publication of any of its
annual or interim reports, subject to the conditions of the SFC Waiver as set

out in the 27 February 2013 Announcement including but not limited to:

(i) the Manager shall publish and distribute to the Unitholders an annual
report of RREEF CCT within three months after the end of each
financial year of RREEF CCT;

(i) for each annual report of RREEF CCT, all the relevant content
requirements for the corresponding preliminary annual results
announcement as set out in the Listing Rules (currently contained
in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) as if those requirements were
applicable to RREEF CCT shall be covered by and included in the

annual report itself; and

(iiiy ~ for each interim report of RREEF CCT, all the relevant content
requirements for the corresponding preliminary interim results
announcement as set out in the Listing Rules (currently contained
in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) as if those requirements were
applicable to RREEF CCT shall be covered by and included in the

interim report itself.

As required by the REIT Code, the Manager will ensure that public
announcements of material information and developments with respect to
RREEF CCT will be made on a timely basis in order to keep the Unitholders
apprised of the position of RREEF CCT.
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Units in Issue

The Manager confirms that there was no repurchase, sale or redemption of
RREEF CCT units and that no new units were issued during the Reporting
Period. The total number of units in issue was 464,161,000 as at 31

December 2017.

Public Float

Based on publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the
Manager, more than 25 per cent of the issued units of RREEF CCT were

held in public hands as at 31 December 2017.

Employees

RREEF CCT is externally managed by the Manager and does not employ
any staff.

Review of Annual Report

The annual report of RREEF CCT for the Reporting Period has been
reviewed by the Board of the Manager in accordance with their respective
terms of reference. The financial information included in this report has also

been agreed by the auditors of RREEF CCT.

Interests of and Dealings in the Units by Directors, the
Manager or the Significant Holders

To monitor and supervise any dealings of the units, the Manager has
adopted a Dealings Code (the “Dealings Code") containing rules on dealings
by the Directors and the Manager on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code pursuant to the Listing Rules
Appendix 10. Pursuant to this code, any Director or the Manager wishing

to deal in the units must first have regard to provisions analogous to those
set out in Part Xlll and XIV of the SFO with respect to insider dealing and
market misconduct. In addition, a Director must not make any unauthorised
disclosure of confidential information or make any use of such information

for the advantage of himself or others.

The Manager has adopted procedures for monitoring the disclosure of
interests by the Directors and the Manager. The provisions of Part XV of
the SFO shall be deemed to apply to the Manager, the Directors and each

Unitholder and all persons claiming through or under them.
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Under the Trust Deed and by virtue of the deemed application of Part XV of
the SFO, Unitholders with a holding of five per cent or more of the units in
issue will have a notifiable interest and are required to notify the SEHK and

the Manager of their holdings in RREEF CCT.

Confirmation of Compliance with the Dealings Code

RREEF CCT has made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Manager and

its employees and each has confirmed that he/she has complied with the
required standard as set out in the Dealings Code throughout the Reporting
Period.
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Connected Party Transactions

BEEALRS

Connected Party Transactions with the Trustee’s
Connected Persons and Manager's
Connected Persons

The following information on the Connected Party Transactions (as defined
under the REIT Code), if any, between RREEF CCT and the Trustee (and
its Directors, senior executives, officers, controlling entities, holding
companies, subsidiaries and associated companies) and the HSBC Group'
(collectively, the “Trustee's Connected Persons”) and; the Connected
Party Transactions between RREEF CCT and the Manager Group? (the
“Manager's Connected Persons”) during the Reporting Period.

Ordinary Banking and Financial Services®

BEITABEALTREEARE
ALTHREALRS
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SE (GRERBIZEABEAL] 2HETH
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B) REEFHEERSEERASE2([ER
ANEBAL D ZEETHBALRSNER -

—RBITREBBRH

The Hongkong and Shanghai Trustee's Connected Bank deposits 9,121
Banking Corporation Limited Persons RITIFR
B LEEZIRITERAA REAMEEAL
Interest income 24

received/receivable

B R R S M A

The Manager confirms that during the Reporting Period, there was no
ordinary banking and financial services transaction entered into between
RREEF CCT and the Manager Group.

Notes:

" HSBC Group refers to The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
and its subsidiaries and unless otherwise expressly stated herein, excludes the
Trustee and its proprietary subsidiaries (being the subsidiaries of the Trustee but
excluding those subsidiaries formed in its capacity as the Trustee of RREEF CCT).

2 Manager Group refers to the Manager and its Directors, senior executives, officers,

controlling entities, holding companies, subsidiaries and associated companies
including Deutsche Bank AG and its subsidiaries.

3 Ordinary banking and financial services include bank deposits and interest earned
therefrom.
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Corporate Finance Transactions
Both the Manager and the Trustee confirm that during the Reporting Period,
there was no corporate finance transaction between RREEF CCT and the

Manager Group or the HSBC Group.

Confirmation by the Independent Non-executive Director
of the Manager

The INED of the Manager confirms that he has reviewed all relevant
connected party transactions during the Reporting Period and they are

satisfied that those transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of RREEF CCT;

(ii) on normal commercial terms (to the extent that there are comparable
transactions) or, where there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to RREEF CCT than terms available to or

from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements and the Manager's
internal procedures governing them, if any, on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Unitholders of RREEF CCT as a

whole.

Confirmation by the Auditors of RREEF CCT

Pursuant to the waivers from strict compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 8 of the REIT Code, the Manager has engaged the auditors of
RREEF CCT to report on RREEF CCT's connected party transactions on the
ordinary banking and financial services and corporate finance transactions,
where applicable, for the Reporting Period in accordance with Hong

Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Information”

and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions with the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors have issued their letter containing their unqualified findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by RREEF CCT on page 36 of the annual report in accordance
with the waivers granted by the SFC, the REIT Code and the Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
RREEF CCT to the SFC.
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Interests of Connected Persons in Units

BEEALTRESENVHER

The REIT Code requires disclosure in the annual report holdings of each
Connected Person (as defined under the REIT Code) to the scheme. The
provisions of Part XV of the SFO are also deemed by the Trust Deed
constituting RREEF CCT to apply to the Manager and the Directors of the
Manager and to persons interested in or having a short position in the units
of RREEF CCT.

Holdings of the Manager and Director of the Manager

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions in units of the
Manager and the Director as recorded in the Register of Interests required
to be kept by the Manager under Schedule 3 of the Trust Deed were as

follows:

FHERAEGERESTAREAEESNEH
BAL(REHEREERESTINES)
AR HRERREMSELD - REAKERE
FiEESHERRL - &5 LR ERGIE XV
MOVGXTHEREARERARERANE
E O URREERHEESESEUEAES
HORBEAL

ERARESMiGES
REZZ—+FE+ZA=+—8 REBARE
ERRNNER=MEENREZ LM
EBAREERESEMAFEIRARD
T

Mr. Kurt William
ROELOFFS Junior?

Long Position 900,000 0.19
Kurt William
ROELOFFS Juniorst 4?2

A

900,000 0.19 —

Notes

1 Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2017 and 30 June
2017 respectively.

N

The Director holds a beneficial interest in the units of RREEF CCT as described
in the table.

i
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Manager and the
Directors have no other interests in units of RREEF CCT. Please refer to the
following notes on page 41 in relation to the interests in the units of RREEF

CCT by other Connected Persons.

Holdings of Other Unitholders

According to information available to the Manager, as at 31 December
2017, the interests and short positions in units of every person holding
five per cent or more interest in the units of RREEF CCT (other than the

Manager and the Director as stated above) were as follows:
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Daniel Saul OCH?

Long Position 25.65

e

119,057,500

Och-Ziff Capital
Management Group LLC?
Long Position 25.65

e

119,057,500

0Z Management L.P.?
Long Position 25.65

wE

119,057,500

0Z Asia Master Fund, Ltd.®
Long Position 14.98

HE

69,510,356

Veritas Asset
Management LLP*
Long Position 10.49

R

48,687,000

119,057,500 25.65 —
119,057,500 25.65 —
119,057,500 25.65 —
69,426,800 14.96 0.02
48,687,000 10.49 —

Please refer to page 41 for the notes.
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Interests of Connected Persons in Units
BEATRESENNER

Holdings of Other Unitholders (continued)

Mr. TIN Lik®
Long Position
M5 4S

E

0OZ Master Fund, Ltd®
Long Position

R

Government of Singapore
Investment Corporation
Pte Ltd.

Long Position

MBI ERR AR
HE

UBS AG®
Long Position

HE

Please refer to page 41 for the notes.

46,269,000

44,040,085

32,432,157

23,934,000
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6.99

5.16

HESBENEEAREER @

46,269,000

43,698,700

32,432,157

23,934,000

A

5]

=5

i

ES

a1

9.97

9.41

6.99

5.16

LB RN -

0.08



RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETFEBEEMEREGETES

Holdings of Other Unitholders (continued)

Notes:

8

Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2017
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, OZ Management L.P. held a long position of
119,057,500 units through its wholly owned subsidiaries OZ Asia Master Fund,
Ltd., OZ Master Fund, Ltd., Gordel Holdings Ltd., Goldman Sachs & Co. Profit
Sharing Master Trust and OZ Global Special Investments Master Fund, L.P.. OZ
Management L.P. was wholly owned by Och-Ziff Holding Corporation which
was a wholly owned subsidiary of Och-Ziff Capital Management Group LLC. Mr.
Daniel Saul OCH owned 64.5% per cent of Och-Ziff Capital Management Group
LLC.

The long position of 119,057,500 units held by OZ Management L.P. in its
capacity as investment manager also represented the deemed interests of Mr.
Daniel Saul OCH, Och-Ziff Capital Management Group LLC and Och-Ziff Holding
Corporation by virtue of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2017, OZ Asia Master Fund, Ltd. was reported to hold a
beneficial interest in 69,510,356 units.

As at 31 December 2017, Veritas Asset Management LLP was reported to hold
a beneficial interest in 48,687,000 units. As per confirmation from Veritas Asset
Management LLP dated 13 February 2014, as part of reorganisation in 2013, The
Real Return Group is no longer its holding company, and therefore no longer its

ultimate holding company and therefore no longer relevant for reporting purpose.

Mr. TIN Lik was reported to hold a beneficial interest in 46,269,000 units.

0OZ Master Fund, Ltd. was reported to hold a beneficial interest in 44,040,085
units.

Government of Singapore Investment Corporation Pte Ltd in its capacity as
investment manager was reported to hold a beneficial interest in 32,432,157
units.

UBS AG was reported having a security interest in 23,934,000 units.
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Trustee’s Report
SEARE

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of RREEF China
Commercial Trust has, in all material respects, managed RREEF China
Commercial Trust in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed
dated 28 May 2007, as amended by the supplemental deed dated 27
February 2013 for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited

(in its capacity as Trustee of RREEF China Commercial Trust)

Hong Kong, 13 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2B AR

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the Unitholders
of RREEF China Commercial Trust

(a Hong Kong collective investment scheme authorised under section 104
of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong))

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RREEF China Commerecial
Trust (“RREEF CCT") set out on pages 50 to 81, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to Unitholders,
distribution statement and cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
disposition of the assets and liabilities of RREEF CCT as at 31 December
2017 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of RREEF CCT in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants ("“the Code"”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUZBERE

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that RREEF
CCT is in the process of termination and liquidation and is no longer
considered to be a going concern. Details about the basis of preparation of

the financial statements are set out in note 2(b) to the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Provision for litigation and legal costs
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Refer to note 11 to the financial statements and the accounting policy in note 2
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The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Since 2011, RREEF CCT has been in litigation with Mr. Tin
Lik pursuant to a Writ of Summons issued on 5 July 2011 (the
“Writ") by Mr. Tin Lik in the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR"). The High Court
handed down its judgement on 15 February 2016 and Mr. Tin
Lik filed a notice of appeal on 14 March 2016, and which was
dismissed by the Court of Appeal on 23 June 2017. In turn,
Mr. Tin Lik filed a notice of motion for leave to appeal that
decision on 21 July 2017, and which was also subsequently
dismissed by the Court of Appeal. In the absence of any
further action taken by Mr. Tin Lik on or before 17 November
2017, we have been advised that Mr. Tin Lik has no further
right to pursue further appeals with respect to proceedings
relating to the Writ. RREEF CCT is entitled to recover from
Mr. Tin Lik certain of its legal costs incurred. The details of
the litigation, Mr. Tin Lik's appeal and the Court’s decision

are set out in note 2(b) to the financial statements.

RREEF CCT's financial statements reflect the consequences
of the judgements handed down and the legal advice

received by the manager of RREEF CCT (the “Manager”).

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETUNMEEZEER

Our audit procedures to assess provisions for litigation and legal

costs included the following:

discussing the status and potential exposures in respect
of the litigation and claims with RREEF CCT's and the
Manager’s external legal counsels and obtaining from
them letters setting out the progress of the litigation
and claims and their views on the likely outcome of the

litigation;

challenging the assumptions and critical judgements
made by the Manager which impacted the estimation

of the provisions, by inspecting the underlying
documentation, including the operating expenses
budget, quotations and invoices from the relevant service
providers, and assessing whether or not there was an
indication of management bias in the estimation of the

provisions; and
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The Key Audit Matter (Continued)
FAEETEEE)

Provisions for legal costs, fees and expenses, which
represent legal costs, fees and expenses incurred but not
yet paid and expected to be incurred, in relation to the legal
costs recoverable from Mr. Tin Lik and the termination

of RREEF CCT, as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
HK$10,233,000.

We identified assessing the provision for litigation and legal
costs as a key audit matter because of the estimates on
which these provisions are based entail a significant degree
of management judgement due to the uncertainties in
relation to the estimating the amounts and may be subject

to management bias.

B-Z——Fi FEFHEESBARBOLEEREE
TE-—FLARREFRARITRES S EREHE
ATMRZEHTERSK D ERFLR  RFERRZ
Z-RF_ATHRABRMBEHARANEEBERR T X
FZATOARRLEHFBHE  ZLHFER_Z—LFR
AZ+=RELFEERD - BF BHEER-_T—+
FEtAZ T AR LFHTRALFEERZBDABA - £
PERNVE LR ERE - i THAAEEREE-T—LF
TR+t -t B ZARBEME—FTH  HMEEE
NELEBEENREASRIRHE-F LF - EEFHE
EeAEMANEEREHBOICEENERER - AR
RORRHD - BHREN EFUARBEERZORNIEH
HIEHIIR B IMKRMFE 2(0)

BEFMEESOMBREARRT ERAEORNEBTE
NEBEEFHMEESEREA(TERADESNERER -

REZE—tF+-A=+—H ZEEAIEMERERE
#5110,233,0008 7T - % EMEIEEEWE N TENER
ERMEERHEESR LEHNCBEBERERMS - K
RIGGHEENER -

BRPEFDRLEZRERREINRERETEE  BRERM
AEENTHREMREEE YRS R ENRBMAEL
EXRAE AR TARERGIEEZIEERBRRLS

ISP
4 =

2017 Annual Report 45
ZT—LFFR

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BMETNAREZEE )

o inspecting relevant documentation in relation to the
arrangements entered into between the Manager, the
trustee of RREEF CCT and RREEF CCT for bearing any
potential shortfalls in the provisions for litigation and legal

costs.
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Information other than the financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Manager is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. WWe have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Manager for the financial
statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and for such internal control as the Manager determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager is responsible for
assessing RREEF CCT's ability to continue as a going concern and
disclosing matters related to going concern. The Manager considers that
RREEF CCT is no longer a going concern and has prepared the financial

statements on the basis as set out in note 2(b) thereto.

In addition, the Manager is required to ensure that the financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions

of the trust deed dated 28 May 2007 (the “Trust Deed”) and the relevant
disclosure provisions set out in Appendix C of the Code on Real Estate
Investment Trusts (the “REIT Code”) issued by the Securities and Futures

Commission of Hong Kong.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Appendix C of the REIT Code, and for no other purpose. WWe do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we
are required to assess whether the financial statements of RREEF CCT
have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure

requirements of Appendix C of the REIT Code.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of RREEF CCT's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the Manager.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's judgement that
RREEF CCT is no longer a going concern based on the audit evidence

obtained.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Manager with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related

safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Manager, we determine

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements for the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on matters under the relevant provisions of the
Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure requirements of
Appendix C of the REIT Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust
Deed and the relevant disclosure requirements set out in Appendix C of the

REIT Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Hui Chuen Hoi.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

13 March 2018
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Statement of Comprehensive

EFHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE_Z—tFT-A=+—RLFE BFESHER  UETIIR)

Income

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Note $'000 $'000
Wi Fx Fr
Interest income from bank deposits RITHIBULA 24 15
Other income EHApUg A 3 - —
Other expense Hppx 3 - (5,335)
Net reversal of provision for other payables HEibpERIERTERER
and accruals 2B EBEEFRE 4 2,700 —
Administrative expenses 1T (1,835) (1,748)
Profit/(loss) before taxation and REBEREESEN
transactions with Unitholders BEARSZAN
wBF(E18) 5 889 (7,068)
Income tax Frig#i 6 - —
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive HESBENBEEARSH
income for the year before KA AR R, (B518)
transactions with Unitholders kE2mEkE 889 (7,068)
Profit/(loss) per unit SELSBBN,(FHE)
- basic and diluted —BEXR#EE 8 $0.002 ($0.015)

The notes on pages 55 to 82 form part of these financial statements.

EE5 EEFE G2 BENMEE LTI EHRERAL
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BETEEXEHEREGETES ZE—HFEFR
BEESER
As at 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
RZZ—+F+=A=+—8 (BRIFRHEEHA  UETIIR)
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Note $'000 $'000
k=S Fr T
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents RE KRB EEY 9,121 16,977
Amount due from Vendor FEWE 5 IB 10 - —
Total assets WEE 9,121 16,977
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HEmEMREREREA 11 (10,233) (18,978)
Amount due to the Vendor ENBFHIE 12 - —
(10,233) (18,978)
Net current liabilities nEBEE (1,112) (2,001)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE (1.112) (2,001)
Total liabilities HmEE (10,233) (18,978)
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (1,112) (2,001)
Number of units in issue ERITESENEE 13 464,161,000 464,161,000
Net liabilities per unit SEESENEGEFE ($0.002) ($0.004)

Approved and authorised for issue by RREEF China REIT Management

Limited, as the Manager of RREEF China Commercial Trust on 13 March

2018:

Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior
Chairman

TR

RREEF China REIT Management Limited

EETEERESERARAR

REZE-NF=ZA+=HEEHTBEEEESE
BERAREREETERESHEREER
ESEEAAERRENE  AhATALR

David Wyndham Edwards

Exeutive Director

HiTEE

RREEF China REIT Management Limited
BETEERESBEARAR

The notes on pages 55 to 82 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

ESBENVRKAARGEEREEZH X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE_Z—tFT-A=+—RLFE BFESHER  UETIIR)

2017 2016
D —T-x

$'000 $000

Fx Fit

Balance as at 1 January R—A—B#&& (2,001) 5,067
Profit / (loss) and total comprehensive income FEHEA,(BE)RERZEBRA

for the year FERE 889 (7,068)

Balance as at 31 December R+-A=+—B W& (1,112) (2,001)

The notes on pages 55 to 82 form part of these financial statements. FE5EEEQ BB SV HRES

F7 e
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Distribution Statement

7RI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE_Z—tFT-A=+—HALFE (BFERHER  UETIIR)

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—RF
$'000 $000
Fx Fit
Profit/(loss) for the year, before transaction HESBENIFEARSAN
with Unitholders HaH, (E8) 889 (7,068)
Adjustment:
Non-cash net reversal of provision for JEIR & E A FETFRIA
other payables and accruals REBRERZEE
Bl 7 58 (2,700) —
Total adjustment R (2,700) —
Loss after adjustments for the year, before HESENIFEAR AN
transactions with Unitholders FRIBEANEBRE (1,811) (7,068)
Annual distributable income FEADIRBA - —
Total distributions DI - —
Distribution per Unit (in Hong Kong dollar) BEESENSR(ABITIIR) - —

Notes:

Wi

(i) Pursuant to the Trust Deed, RREEF CCT is required to ensure that the total (i)
amounts distributed or distributable to Unitholders shall be not less than 90% of
its annual distributable income for each financial year. The policy of the Manager
is to distribute to Unitholders at least 90% of RREEF CCT's annual distributable

income for each financial year.

The Manager also has the discretion to distribute additional amounts if and to the
extent the Trust has funds available, in the opinion of the Manager.

The notes on pages 55 to 82 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement
HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BE_Z—tFT-A=+—RLFE BFESHER  UETIIR)

Note 2017 2016
Lik=d —E—tF —T—RF
$'000 $000
Fi Fit
Operating activities RETE
RETRTEREE S B
Profit/(loss) before taxation and transactions BBAXZHH
with Unitholders AL (EiE) 889 (7,068)
Adjustments for: FHEE
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITFRFBWA (24) (15)
— Net reversal of provision for other payables —Hib R FRIE &
and accruals TRIREB A 2B
B (2,700) -
Operating loss before changes HEESEHAHN
in working capital reEERE (1,835) (7,083)
Decrease in other payables HibERRIERERER
and accruals B Rk (6,045) (1,134)
Decrease in amount due to Vendor FERT B 75 sRIBR R - (10,900)
Net cash used in operations EEMARESTE (7,880) (19,117
Investing activity REZH
Interest received from bank deposits W ER 1T 17 7 FILE 24 15
Net cash generated from investing activity | REEFEHAEREFHE 24 15
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEYHD (7,856) (19,102)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHHBRER
ReZLEY 16,977 36,079
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December | A+ =A=+—HKEKE
RASEEY 9 9,121 16,977

The notes on pages 55 to 82 form part of these financial statements. E55HEFE HNMNEB ISR BHRERIS °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A ISR A

1 General

RREEF China Commercial Trust (“RREEF CCT" or the “Trust”) is in
the process of termination and liquidation, details of which are set out
in the relevant announcements of RREEF CCT and note 2(b) to the
financial statements.

The Manager’s registered office is located at Level 52, International

Commerce Center, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

These audited financial statements forming part of the annual report,

were authorised for issue on 13 March 2018.

2 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Code on Real Estate Investment
Trusts (the "REIT Code”) issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC") and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“SEHK"). Significant accounting policies adopted by RREEF CCT
are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of RREEF CCT.
These developments are not relevant to RREEF CCT's financial
statements. RREEF CCT has not applied any new standard,
amendment or interpretation that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period (note 18).
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56 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FEEHBEE®W
(b) MIBEBRRNOEREE

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 February
2010, on 12 April 2010, RREEF CCT sold the Gateway Plaza, the
investment property, to Mapletree India China Fund Ltd through
the disposal of the entire issued ordinary share capital of Beijing
Gateway Plaza (BVI) Limited (the “Disposal”), which holds the
entire issued ordinary share capital of a property holding company,
HK Gateway Plaza Company Limited. As a result, Gateway Plaza
(BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the
Trust as at 12 April 2010.

Subsequent to the Disposal, RREEF CCT had no real estate assets
to fulfill the criteria for operating as a REIT and accordingly RREEF
CCT was to be terminated, delisted from trading on the SEHK

and liquidated in accordance with the REIT Code. The Original
Estimated Timetable for the Proposed Liquidation, the Proposed
Delisting and the Proposed Deauthorisation of RREEF CCT as
disclosed in the interim financial report for the period ended 30
June 2010 and 2010 annual financial statements has been delayed
following (1) a notice published by the Trustee pursuant to section
29 of the Trustee Ordinance, and (2) the court application by the
Trustee (the “Court Application”).

Under the Court Application, the Trustee sought the court’s
direction including whether it may proceed with a distribution of
the entirety of the net assets of RREEF CCT without retention
(subject to deduction of relevant costs) to meet any possible
claim which might otherwise be made by the Vendor (see note
12). On 31 May 2011, the Court Application was heard at the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “High Court”). The judgment was issued on 30 June 2011
(the “Judgment”). In the Judgment, the High Court granted the
Trustee the declaration sought to proceed with a distribution of
the entirety of the net assets of RREEF CCT without any retention
to meet any possible claim by Mr. Tin Lik.
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2 FEEHBEE®W
(b) MBHRRNFEREEE)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

On 13 July 2011, Mr. Tin Lik lodged an appeal against the
Judgment at the High Court (the “Appeal”) on certain procedural
grounds, including but not limited to the alleged fact that he

did not receive proper notice of the court hearing for the Court
Application held on 31 May 2011 and that the High Court judge
refused to postpone the handing down of the Judgment to hear

an inter-parties summons filed by Mr. Tin Lik on 29 June 2011.

On 23 November 2011, the Appeal was heard at the Court of
Appeal of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
"“Court of Appeal”). The judgment of the Appeal was handed
down on 21 December 2011. In the judgment of the Appeal,

the Court of Appeal has dismissed the Appeal. Accordingly the
declaration granted by the High Court in the Judgment, namely
that the Trustee should proceed with a distribution of the entirety
of the net assets of RREEF CCT without any retention to meet

any possible claim by Mr. Tin Lik, has been upheld.

As no application for leave to appeal to the Court of Final Appeal
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region was filed by Mr.
Tin Lik by 18 January 2012, being the end of the appeal period for
the Appeal, the appeal period for the Appeal has lapsed.

In 2013, $0.74 million of legal costs incurred by the Manager/the
Trustee in relation to the Appeal were recovered from Mr. Tin Lik

as directed by the High Court.

Separately, on 5 July 2011, Mr. Tin Lik issued a writ of summons

in the High Court as plaintiff against Deutsche Bank (“DB") as first

defendant, the Manager as second defendant and the Trustee as
third defendant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Note:

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Tin Lik makes certain claims (the

“Claims”) (note 11(ii)), including amongst others:

against DB, the Manager and Trustee, jointly and severally,
challenging the amount under the set-off (note 12) and
claiming, amongst other things, an entitlement to the Initial
Retention Amount' under the sale and purchase agreement
dated 4 June 2007 and an amount of $289,426,166 which
Mr. Tin Lik claims to be refundable by the Trustee and/or the

Manager; and

against DB and the Manager, jointly and severally for
damages on certain matters as announced by the Manager
on 7 July 2011.

Trial hearing of the Writ was held at the High Court from 16

September 2013 to 9 October 2013 and the closing submissions

were heard from 23 to 24 January 2014.

In the 15 February 2016 Judgment, the High Court of HKSAR

determined, including amongst others:

1.

each of the Claims was unfounded and was dismissed in its

entirety;

the set-off amounts (amounting to an aggregate of
HK$226,596,6712) have been properly set off against
balances (amounting to an aggregate of HK$237,496,398?)
otherwise payable by RREEF CCT to Mr. Tin Lik. The
additional sum of HK$50 million had been properly treated as

waived and was not payable to Mr. Tin Lik;

Initial Retention Amount includes (i) retention sum of HK$156 million (US$20
million) held by the Trustee as security pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 4 June 2007 between Mr. Tin Lik as vendor, the Trustee

as purchaser and the Manager in respect of warranties made by the vendor
therein; (ii) remaining balance of initial consideration unpaid to the vendor
amounting of HK$64.95 million; and (i) HK$50 million dividend declared by BVI
Gateway in respect of year ended 31 December 2006 payable to the vendor
prior to acquisition by RREEF CCT.

The set-off amounts and the balances exclude the HK$50 million treated as
waived under the 15 February 2016 Judgment.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)
3. Mr. Tin Lik is entitled to judgment in the amount of
HK$10,899,727 against the Manager and the Trustee, being
the Balance Amount, which confirmed and was consistent
with the Manager’s calculation of the balance due to Mr. Tin
Lik as disclosed in the 7 July 2011 Announcement; and

4. Mr. Tin Lik was ordered to pay DB, the Manager and the
Trustee their legal costs incurred in relation to all of the
Claims (except for the costs relating to the set-off amounts)
on an indemnity basis, the amount of which shall be subject

to court taxation if not agreed between the parties.

On 14 March 20186, the parties made submissions to the High

Court on the questions of interest to be awarded (if any) in relation
to the Balance Amount and the costs order to be made in respect
of set-offs. The Judge made a determination on these issues after

considering the submissions on 10 May 2016.
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2 FEEHBEE®W
(b) MBHRRNOFEREEE)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

In the 10 May 2016 Decision, the High Court of HKSAR

determined, including amongst others:

1. Aninterest at the rate of 1% above HSBC prime lending rate
per annum was accrued on the Balance Amount for the period
from 31 May 2008 to 15 February 2016. Moreover, an interest
at the judgment rate of 8% per annum was accrued on the
Balance Amount for the period from 16 February 2016 to the

payment date of the Balance Amount.

2. Mr. Tin Lik was ordered to pay DB, the Manager and the
Trustee their legal costs incurred in relation to all of the
Claims (except for the costs relating to the set-off amounts)
on an indemnity basis, and 80% of their legal costs incurred
in relation to set-off amounts on a party and party basis, the
amounts of which shall be subject to court taxation if not

agreed between the parties.

Based on the 15 February 2016 Judgment and the 10 May 2016
Decision, the Manager and the Trustee had paid the Balance
Amount of HK$10.9 million and interest amount of HK$5.3 million
to Mr. Tin Lik on 15 June 2016.

In the 14 March 2016 Notice of Appeal, Mr. Tin Lik seeks an order
that save for the judgment in respect of the Balance Amount,

the 15 February 2016 Judgment be set aside, that judgment

be entered ordering the Manager and the Trustee to pay to him
HK$287,496,458 plus the balance due from the payment made by
him on 7 September 2007, and that the Manager and Trustee pay
Mr. Tin Lik's costs of the Appeal and of the preceding action. The
hearing of the appeal took place at the Court of Appeal of HKSAR
on 9and 10 May 2017. On 23 June 2017, the Court of Appeal
handed down the 23 June 2017 Judgment, dismissing the 2016
Appeal brought by Mr. Tin Lik. The Court of Appeal also allowed
the cross-appeal brought by the Manager, as a result of which

the part of the 15 February 2016 Judgment adjudging that the
Manager was jointly liable with the Trustee to pay HK$10.9 million
to Mr. Tin Lik was set aside. The Court of Appeal did not disturb
the finding of the 15 February 2016 Judgment as between Mr. Tin
Lik and the Trustee.
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2 FEEHBEE®W
(b) MBHRRNFEREEE)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

Further, by way of the 23 June 2017 Judgment, the Court of
Appeal made an order nisi that Mr. Tin Lik shall pay the costs of
the Manager and the Trustee in the appeal and the costs of the
Manager of the cross-appeal, and such costs are to be taxed (in
the case of the Manager, with certificate for 2 counsel) if not
agreed. On 7 July 2017, the Manager made the Costs Variation
Application to vary such order nisi to the effect that: (a) the costs
of the appeal and the cross-appeal to be paid by Mr. Tin Lik to
the Manager shall be taxed on a common fund basis; and (b) the
Manager should be awarded 100% of its legal costs incurred in
relation to the defence of set-off (as opposed to 80% of such
costs as ordered under the 10 May 2016 Decision). The Trustee
supported the Manager's application under (a) and requested that
the variation of taxation to a common fund basis also apply to the
costs of the Trustee. Mr. Tin Lik opposed the application under (a).
The application under (a) was allowed by the Court of Appeal on
24 August 2017, whilst the application under (b) was refused by
the Court of Appeal on 11 July 2017.

On 21 July 2017, Mr. Tin Lik filed a Notice of Motion for Leave
to Appeal with the Court of Appeal, pursuant to which he has
made an application for leave to appeal against the 23 June 2017
Judgment to the Court of Final Appeal. On 20 October 2017, the
Court of Appeal issued the 20 October 2017 Judgment. In the 20
October 2017 Judgment, the Court of Appeal has dismissed the
Application for Leave to Appeal.

Mr Tin Lik has not filed any application to the Court of Final Appeal
for leave to appeal on or before 17 November 2017, being the end
of the application period. As such, Mr Tin Lik has no further right
to pursue further appeals with respect to proceedings relating to
the Writ of Summons issued by Mr Tin Lik on 5 July 2011 in the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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2 FEEHBEE®W
(b) MBHRRNOFEREEE)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

Furthermore, RREEF CCT recognised an estimated Legal Costs
Receivable of HK$20.0 million (of which HK$15.5 million was
recognised in 2016) from Mr. Tin Lik, on the basis of the 15
February 2016 Judgment, the 10 May 2016 Decision, the 23 June
2017 Judgment and legal advice. Given the estimated timing,
nature and probability of such receivable, full provision has been

made as at 31 December 2017.

The final amount to be received by the Trust in respect of the
Legal Costs Receivable is contingent upon the taxation of costs in
relation to the Writ and payment being made by Mr. Tin Lik. The
Manager will seek for recovery of the Legal Costs Receivable for
the benefit of the Trust and continue to update Unitholders as to

any material developments.

As announced on 3 May 2012, in the event there is a shortfall in
the provisions amounts, any additional costs, fees and expenses
incurred in the name of either the Manager, the Trustee or RREEF
CCT exceding the amounts already provided will be borne by the
Manager and/or the Trustee in such proportions to be agreed
between parties.
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2 FEEHBEE®W
(b) MBHRRNFEREEE)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

As announced on 3 May 2012, the Proposed Delisting and the
Proposed Deauthorisation will occur as soon as practicable after
the Claims have been finally adjudicated by the High Court (or
otherwise withdrawn or determined) and after all of the assets

of RREEF CCT at that time (if any) have been distributed to
Unitholders pursuant to the Proposed Liquidation. As set out
above, proceedings in relation to the Claims are still ongoing as of
31 December 2017.

RREEF CCT is no longer considered by the Manager to be a
going concern. Accordingly, assets are valued at their estimated
realisable amounts and liabilities are stated at their estimated
settlement amounts, and provision for termination and liquidation

costs has been made as at 31 December 2017.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised
when there is objective evidence of impairment and are measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate where the
effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Trust
about events that have an impact on the asset’s estimated future
cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Trust is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly

are recognised in profit or loss.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Cash and cash equivalents

(e)

(f)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three

months of maturity at acquisition.

Unitholders’ funds

In accordance with the Trust Deed, RREEF CCT has a limited life
of 80 years less 1 day from the date of commencement of RREEF
CCT, and RREEF CCT is required to distribute to Unitholders

not less than 90 per cent of its annual distributable income for
each financial year. Accordingly, the units contain contractual
obligations to pay cash dividends and also, upon the termination
of RREEF CCT, a share of all net cash proceeds derived from the
sale or realisation of the assets of RREEF CCT less any liabilities,
in accordance with their proportionate interests in RREEF CCT at
the date of its termination. The Unitholders' funds are therefore
classified as financial liabilities in accordance with HKAS 32,

Financial Instruments: Presentation.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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66 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FEEHBEEX@

(g) Income tax (g) FAE%

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets
and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be

available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Provisions and contingent liabilities

0]

(i

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Trust has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Trust and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Trust if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Trust;
(i) has significant influence over the Trust; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Trust.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

1)

Related parties (Continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Trust if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Trust are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate of joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of an entity related to the Trust.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1) (i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Trust or to the Trust's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2 FEEHBEEX@

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Trust's most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Trust's various lines of

businesses and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these

criteria.

Other Income and Other Expenses

Other income: In addition to the estimated Legal Costs Receivable

of HK$15.5 million that recognised in 2016, RREEF CCT further
recognised the estimated Legal Costs Receivable of HK$4.5 million
during the period on the basis of the 23 June 2017 Judgment and

legal advice. Given the estimated timing, nature and probability of such

receivable, full provision was made as at 31 December 2017.

Other expense: The amount In 2016 represented interest expenses on
the Balance Amount of $5.3 million, which is calculated based on 15
February 2016 Judgment and 10 May 2016 Decision. An interest at the
rate of 1% above HSBC prime lending rate per annum for the period
from 31 May 2008 to 15 February 2016, and at the judgment rate of 8%
per annum for the period from 16 February 2016 to the payment date
of the Balance Amount.
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70 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Net reversal of provision for other payables and
accruals

As a result of dismissal of Tin's Appeal and lapse of appeal period
in November 2017, based on legal advice, the Manager made a
reassessment on the legal costs provision and reversal of HK$4.2

million was recognised during the year.

Besides, additional provision for termination and liquidation costs of
$1.5 million was made in 2017.

Profit/(loss) before taxation and transactions with
Unitholders

Profit/(loss) before taxation and transactions with Unitholders is arrived
at after charging:

HttENRERBRERA ZRE
(=] 5% 7 58

FA 0 26 A A0 E SR BB R LSRR EL R
—T—tF+— R TRREEAE
REIMTEARRARE  LRE428
BB ARERRE -

B =B — LML RE SRR
PG SEET -

R BRERBESBEAFAAR
ZANER, (B8)
REtBUERERE S B H AR S A%
A/ (B518) BN T5IRIE -

2017 2016

—E—tF —ERE

$'000 $'000

Fr F

Manager's fees EEAER 54 105

Other legal and professional fees HEMERREXEER 583 464

Trustee's fees ZEAEA 120 120
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN &

—audit services — BZRB 400 400

—non-audit services —EEZRE 150 150

Bank charges RITEA 4 5

RREEF CCT did not appoint any director nor did it enter into any
employment contracts with counterparties during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

2 —+tF+A=+—HLEFEK
CE-RFEtTZA=T—RILEFEHSHM -
EERHEESHEZEEMES - T
BRI M ARAE L o



RREEF China Commercial Trust
EETEEEFHEREETES

6

Income tax

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as RREEF CCT

did not earn any income assessable to Hong Kong Profits Tax during

the current and prior years.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) at

applicable tax rate:
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FriS®i
MRNEEENERSNAFERBEFE
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BRI L 3 4t P S B A o

PRSI E AR RS E @ aha A
/(18 ME AR -

2017 2016

S B R0

$'000 $000

Fir T

Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELATRE R (EE) 889 (7,068)
Notional tax on loss before 1#%16.5% Fi & (2016: 16.5%)

taxation calculated FTE MR ATE R

at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) WEZMERIA 147 (1,166)

Tax effect of non-taxable income SHRA TR & (449) (2)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AZ R B E 302 1,168

Actual tax expense for the year FEERBIEZ L - —

Segment Reporting

No segment information for the current and prior years is presented
as RREEF CCT did not generate any revenue during the years and the
operating results for the year were solely for the head office following
the Disposal.

Profit / (loss) per unit before transactions with
Unitholders

The profit per unit before transactions with Unitholders for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to $0.002 per unit (2016: loss of
$0.0015 per unit). The calculation of basic profit/ (loss) per unit before
transactions with Unitholders is based on the RREEF CCT's profit for
the year before transactions with Unitholders of $889,000 (2016: loss
of $7,068,000) and the weighted average number of 464,161,000
(2016: 464,161,000) units in issue during the year.

As there were no potential dilutive units in issue during the current and
prior years, diluted profit/(loss) per unit is the same as the basic profit/

(loss) per unit.
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9 Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEEY
2017 2016
S L
$'000 $'000
Fx F
Deposits with banks HRITE TR 9,000 16,000
Cash at bank and in hand HRITFERRES 121 977
9,121 16,977

10 Amount due from Vendor

10 BWERNRE

2017 2016

—g—t% e

$000 $/000

Fir T

Legal costs receivable FEM R E A 20,000 15,500
Less: provision Hm B (20,000) (15,500)

The gross amount represents estimated Legal Costs Receivable, this
amount is calculated based on the 15 February 2016 Judgment, the
10 May 2016 Decision, the 23 June 2017 Judgment and legal advice.

Given the estimated timing, nature and probability of such receivable,

full provision was made as at 31 December 2017.

The final amount to be received by the Trust is contingent upon

the taxation of costs in relation to the Claims and payment being
made by Mr. Tin Lik. The Manager will seek recovery of the Legal
Costs Receivable for the benefit of the Trust and continue to update
Unitholders as to any material developments.

SEBERERYOREZER  FAR/RE—
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11 Other payables and accruals
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11 HENRERERER

Termination and liquidation costs (note (i)
Other legal costs provision (note(ii))
Other payables and accruals (note (iii))

Manager's fees payable (note 16(c)(ii)

R RERE R (M)
H kB R (M EE o)

HAb IR R

TEIR B A (P AE Gii))

ENEIRAEER
(BFEE16(c)(ii))

() The amount represents the estimated termination and liquidation

expenses of RREEF CCT.

Movement of termination and liquidation costs provision during

2017 2016

S i B i
$'000 $'000

T T
4,479 2,979
3,968 14,606
1,732 1,288
54 105
10,233 18,978

ZHAREERMEESWERILRIE

BRIGFTER -

RERKIERBRERBENZ DI

the year are as follows: e
2017 2016
S i
$'000 $'000
Fi Fi
At 1 January ®n—A—H 2,979 2,979
Addition provision 800 R BE 1,500 —
At 31 December R+ZA=+—AH 4,479 2,979

(ii)

Other legal costs provision represents estimated legal costs in

relation to the Claims and the Notice of Appeal under relevant

provisions of the Trust Deed. As a result of 20 October 2017

Judgment, the Board reassessed the legal costs provision and

considered the provision is appropriate, based on the legal advice.

(i) RIFEXZOANBEBIGER - A%
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RE M RRME
11 Other payables and accruals (continued) 11 HttEFREBEREREA @
Movement of other legal costs provision during the year are as follows: RERNEMEFEERBENEHNOT -
2017 2016
S 2%
$'000 $'000
Fx Fr
At 1 January m—HA—H 14,606 16,122
Provisions utilised B AR EE (6,438) (1,516)
Provision reversed eIk (4,200) —
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 3,968 14,606
(iii) Included in other payables and accruals is an amount due to (i) HubENZERTEREAAERNZ
Trustee of $1 20,000 (201 6: $1 20,000). éj‘b /\ %,\ IE\ 120.000 ﬁ(: g — /‘—\ f‘z .
120,000 7T) °
12 Amount due to the Vendor 12 FE{IE H &
2017 2016
—T—tF T —RF
$'000 $'000
T F
Retention of proceeds on acquisition WEEFTIS R BRE & 156,000 156,000
Balance of initial unpaid consideration? BIRRNREZR? 64,955 64,955
Retention of the Vendor's unit distribution BEHESBEUDRRB S 16,542 16,542
Amounts set-off? HEHFRIE (226,597) (226,597)
Interest payable FETF B 5,335 5,335
Repayment made BN (16,235) (16,235)
The Manager, as confirmed appropriate in the 15 February 2016 EBMABE " SE—XNE-"A+HBENE
Judgment, has exercised its rights of set-off against the amount due SR BT EEN K ENE FE
to the Vendor to compensate the Trust's losses and/or additional LA (ST 1B & s BT EE LE WO SR SN
expenses incurred. % oo
Note: B3
3. The balance of initial unpaid consideration and the amounts set-off exclude the 3. BRRNRESHRREBEHEREBETIRER-ZT
HK$50 million treated as waived under the 15 February 2016 Judgment. —ANFEZATRB®OERAEE BRENS T

AT -
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12 Amount due to the Vendor (continued)

The Manager notified the Vendor in advance of the set-offs exercised.
In the Appeal and the Claims, the Vendor stated that he disputes the
set-offs. The Appeal and the Claims have been dismissed by the High
Court (see note 2). The High Court confirmed the Manager's view
that those set-offs are appropriate and legitimate. The Vendor filed a
notice of appeal against the 15 February 2016 Judgment on 14 March
2016, to seek an order that save for the judgment in respect of the
Balance Amount, the 15 February 2016 Judgment be set aside, that
judgment be entered ordering the Manager and the Trustee to pay to
him $287,496,458 plus the balance due from the payment made by
him on 7 September 2007, and that the Manager and Trustee pay Mr.
Tin Lik" s costs of the Appeal and of the preceding action.The hearing
of the appeal took place at the Court of Appeal of HKSAR on 9 and 10
May 2017. On 23 June 2017, the Court of Appeal handed down the
23 June 2017 Judgment, dismissing the 2016 Appeal brought by Mr.
Tin Lik. The Court of Appeal also allowed the cross-appeal brought by
the Manager, as a result of which the part of the 15 February 2016
Judgment adjudging that the Manager was jointly liable with the
Trustee to pay HK$10.9 million to Mr. Tin Lik was set aside. The Court
of Appeal did not disturb the finding of the 15 February 2016 Judgment

as between Mr. Tin Lik and the Trustee.
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12 Amount due to the Vendor (continued)

Further, by way of the 23 June 2017 Judgment, the Court of Appeal
made an order nisi that Mr. Tin Lik shall pay the costs of the Manager
and the Trustee in the appeal and the costs of the Manager of the
cross-appeal, and such costs are to be taxed (in the case of the
Manager, with certificate for 2 counsel) if not agreed. On 7 July 2017,
the Manager made the Costs Variation Application to vary such order
nisi to the effect that: (a) the costs of the appeal and the cross-appeal
to be paid by Mr. Tin Lik to the Manager shall be taxed on a common
fund basis; and (b) the Manager should be awarded 100% of its legal
costs incurred in relation to the defence of set-off (as opposed to
80% of such costs as ordered under the 10 May 2016 Decision). The
Trustee supported the Manager's application under (a) and requesting
that the variation of taxation to a common fund basis also apply to the
costs of the Trustee. Mr. Tin Lik opposed the application under (a). The
application under (a) was allowed by Court of Appeal on 24 August
2017, whilist the application under (b) was refused by the Court of
Appeal on 11 July 2017

On 21 July 2017, Mr. Tin Lik filed a Notice of Motion for Leave to
Appeal with the Court of Appeal, pursuant to which he has made an
application for leave to appeal against the 23 June 2017 Judgment to
the Court of Final Appeal. On 20 October 2017, the Court of Appeal
issued the 20 October 2017 Judgment. In the 20 October 2017
Judgement, the Court of Appeal has dismissed the Application for
Leave to Appeal. Mr. Tin Lik has not filed any application to the Court
of Final Appeal for leave to appeal on or before 17 November 2017,
being the end of the application period. As such, Mr. Tin Lik has no
further right to pursue further appeals with respect to proceedings
relating to the Writ of Summons issued by Mr. Tin Lik on 5 July 2011
in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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13

14

15

Units in issue

There was no repurchase, sale or redemption of RREEF CCT units and
no new units were issued for years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 respectively. The total number of units in issue was 464,161,000
as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Capital management

RREEF CCT is in the process of termination and liquidation, details of
which are set out in note 2(b) to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, RREEF CCT has no

borrowing.

Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of RREEF CCT's business. RREEF CCT's financial
risk management policies and practices in managing these risks are

described below.

(a) Credit risk
Matters relating specifically to the Vendor are referred to in notes

10 and 12 to the financial statements.

All the Trust's cash and cash equivalents are deposited with
financial institutions in Hong Kong that are of sound credit
standing.

At the end of the reporting period, the Trust does not hold any
other assets which are exposed to significant credit risk.
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15 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

RREEF CCT's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected

liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at

the end of the reporting period of RREEF CCT's financial liabilities,

which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including

interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

based on prevailing rates at the end of the reporting period) and

the earliest date RREEF CCT is expected to pay:

15 ¢ REABREER A AEE @

(b) RBEEZEM
EEFHMEETHEREEHERR
s M IERTREE & F K - AFEREEHE
FRvBemE  UWENHEHEER
HHRSESHR -

TERBNEEFHEESSRAGBR
BEMRRBNEONEA - MRS
HWHHA DR HORBERRERE(E
ERBAENEF (TR )R IS
REROFEAFOFEMNFIALE
ERWEESREN R Z&F BHE

At

=
2017
—B—tF
More than More than
Total Within 1year 2 years
contractual 1year but less but less
undiscounted oron than than More
Carrying cash flow demand 2 years 5 years than
amount BHRER 1R 1ERE 2L 5 years
REE BRERBRE FERER 2R 5EHR S5EHUE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Other payables and H At T3R8
accruals (excluding RERER
termination and (BIERERER
liquidation costs and other |~ R EAMEZER
legal costs provision) BHBERRIN) 1,787 1,787 1,787 - - -
1,787 1,787 1,787 - - -
2016
—ZE-RF
More than More than
Total Within 1 year 2 years
contractual 1 year but less but less
undiscounted oron than than More
Carrying cash flow demand 2 years 5 years than
amount EHRIE 1R 1R E 24+ 5 years
REE REREER RIREK 25 AR 5ELAR 5EUE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T T Fr Fr
Other payables and H At fE T3R8
accruals (excluding RERER
termination and (BIERERER
liquidation costs and other | F Eft A2 E
legal costs provision) BABRIN) 1,393 1,393 1,393 — — —
1,393 1,393 1,393 — — —
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15 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk

RREEF CCT is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through
its cash and deposit balances. RREEF CCT has not used any
derivative financial instruments to manage the interest rate risk
during the current and prior years and the Manager is of the
opinion that current exposure to interest rate risk is within an
acceptable range.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, RREEF CCT
does not hold any assets and/or liabilities which would expose
RREEF CCT to significant interest rate risk.

Currency risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, RREEF CCT
is not exposed to currency risk as all of RREEF CCT's assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

Estimation of fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016.

16 Material Related Party Transactions

(a)

During the year, RREEF CCT entered into the following
transactions with certain Connected Persons and/or related parties
under the REIT Code and HKAS 24, Related party disclosures:

Connected Person/related party
BEAL BB
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15 ¢ REBREER A AEE@®

(c) FIREM
EEFHMEESTZRMBHRIBOHI
© RIFRAERTAENERRE o B
FERBEFE BEFHMEESY
BEREMTESR T AEENEME
B MEEBARRBAMNEZRARA T

B -

RZZE—tF+_A=+—BERZ=ZF
—RNE+TZA=+—R EERHME
EeUWEmHBBEEMEER RBER

CHEERMEESRTERNT
KRR

(d) E¥=EE
RZTE—+F+_A=+—RAK=ZF
—RNFF+-A=+—HB EEEWE
EeWRBEMNEYRR  BEs
WEESMANEERBEHUET

HIME -
(e) DAMEME
RZE—+F+_A=+—HREZZ

—ANETZA=+—RB FAAEERT
EMPERSERRERAERE
Al e

16 EXBH LIRS
(a) FAN FEFMERESEETHH
T RKBEEFRBKEERE
ERESTA)R(EBGHLIDE
Z T MRS A T H B ER) RIS AR
5

Relationship with the Trust
BREFEMRIR

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited (“the Trustee”)
VE LTRSS (M) BRAR([ZFEAD

HSBC Holdings Plc and its associates
and other members of its group
(collectively referred to as “HSBC Group”)
EEERBRAR REBEATIR
ZEBHEMKE QR (SEIELEE])

RREEF China REIT Management Limited
EETEFERESERAR AR

The Trustee of RREEF CCT
BERMEESHZTA

Connected Persons of the Trustee

EEANBEALT

The Manager of RREEF CCT
EERHEESHERA



80 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties are as follows:

(c)

16 EXBEH LRSI @
(b) EEBIES > RIMEHNT

2017 2016
S B R
$'000 $000
Fir T
Net amount due to: R ERERCERE

— The Trustee —SFEA 120 120
- The Manager —EEA 54 108

Deposits and cash placed with HEEREZEE
HSBC Group NERMRE 9,121 16,977

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere

(c) BRAHBHRREMBOTWENR

7 K sE

in these financial statements, RREEF CCT entered into following G BERMEESRFERNGY FIIEKX
material related party transactions during the year: B R5 -
2017 2016
S L
$'000 $'000
Frx FT
Manager's fees (note (ii)) EEAE A (B Gi) 54 105
Trustee's fees (note (iii)) ZEEA B A (B EE i) 120 120
Notes: B3
(i)  These transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of business () ZERXRFIREFTHEBRBFRREFTHE
on normal commercial terms. 1R FRHETT ©

(i)

(iif)

The Manager's fees are calculated based on a base fee of 0.4% per
annum on the value of the Deposited Property plus a variable fee of 3%
per annum on the Net Property Income as defined in the Trust Deed.

Under the Trust Deed, the Trustee is entitled to receive a
remuneration of not more than 0.03% per annum on the value of the
Deposited Property as defined in the Trust Deed with a provision for
further increments up to a maximum of 0.06% per annum on the
value of the Deposited Property, subject to a minimum fee of $50,000
per month. Effective from 1 July 2012, the Trustee's fee was reduced
to $10,000 per month.

(ii)

(iii)

BEEANBRERGEVERENES ZEH
MUAFRFE)OERE I LEFREZH
EEMMERANFER D 2 =Z(AF KRG
HINEBHEMME -

BIBEFERY  IEABRRBEERY
FEMGFEVEEBETBBRAD 2THT
Z(AERFE )OS - MZB< T8
EEeATEVEBENESZTHTN
(AFEFHE)  mMREEAARS A 50,000
L BZE—Z—F+tA—HE ITFRXAE
R ZE® A 10,000 7T °
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17 Accounting estimates

The key sources of estimation in applying RREEF CCT's accounting

policies are described below.

(i

(ii)

Amount due from/to the Vendor

The amount due to Mr. Tin Lik, the Vendor, is the net amount
owing to the Vendor. The balance was fully settled in accordance
with the 15 February 2016 Judgment and the 10 May 2016

Decision.

The amount due from Mr. Tin Lik represents estimated Legal
Costs Receivable from the Vendor as per judgment outcome
dated 15 February 2016, the 10 May 2016 Decision and the 23
June 2017 Judgment.

The final amount to be received by the Trust is contingent upon
the taxation of costs in relation to the Writ and the payment being
made by Mr. Tin Lik. The Manager will seek recovery of the Legal
Costs Receivable for the benefit of the Trust and continue to

update Unitholders as to any material developments.

Termination and liquidation costs and other legal costs
provisions
The final amounts are dependent on the progress of the taxation

of costs in relation to the Writ.

As announced on 3 May 2012, in the event there is a shortfall in
the provisions amounts, any additional costs, fees and expenses
incurred in the name of either the Manager, the Trustee or RREEF
CCT exceeding the amounts already provided will be borne by

the Manager and/or the Trustee in such proportions to be agreed
between themselves.

2017 Annual Report
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17 E5H{&Et
EREEEHELESNEHHER T8
e ICRESII T -

(i)

(ii)

W SES A
ENEAEE(BER)NFTAER/BERE
TERIEFE  RE-T—RF_A
THHEARKD AT BEERRE
BEFIRE AT

BB N EENTER/R T —HFX
AZ+=BNM=Z—X"¥=-A+AH
ERER  ZE-R"FERATHKE
PrimmMA REEE RN EKREME A
(fl5t) °

REBERHMEESWOIMELER
ERBORAREBERSTHKNERAR
B AEEERNNR - ERABAS
SRKREMEBEEFHLEESHER
REERREBEREME ARHTE
RERHFINER

RIERFREARAMEZERRE

RRENERRBNRRERABRRE
AMSIRAEE -

WO —TE——FRA=ZBRAEME
ko MEEFHESTIEAIAEAEE
BA XRAXEETFHEESNS
TRENEIZE - BRARRAE
HEEREAR AXTAETRBEHE
TEHI LB o
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18 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have not

been adopted in these financial statements.

The Manager is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on RREEF CCT's results of operations and

financial position.

18 BE-_ZE—tHE+=-HA=+—H

tFEEHEeEEMERRE
M2 IEe] - MEARZREARER
RezEE
HEZSVBHRETNERE BT
AEEEEFTEHRE_T—tF+=A
ST —HIEFERRERZ BT RFE
B EERT RERN AR L FHBHRE
FRERA ©

ERARERZEETNERERHHE
AETERZIBEENG LR BTRM
ZEBR IR HEEFHEES 2K
BEENMBRANBRERAZE
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Unitholder Enquiries/Investor Relations

Your feedback is valuable. If you have any queries,

please contact us at:

RREEF China REIT Management Limited
as the Manager of RREEF China Commercial Trust
Contact Person: Mr. David Wyndham Edwards

Level 52 International Commerce Center
1 Austin Road West

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2203 7872

Fax: +852 2203 7995
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EERER
(HBARARER)
B R MEMEH
BERR
BRES R
BRAE=+/\ig

(FRRESH)
ERETBEMEEAR
BBPRETE
BEEGMAEIRAE

HEEBNBFE
EEREBNEARAT
BERBTEFRER 1835
AR L2241

EEBARARE
GRS s

FERMEESREA

EFRETMEHMR
S RHAD

BRAD A 5R

625

HESBURAATH REEBR
MTOREESER - WEMTAEMEN
U BB I -

BETHAERAELEEARAR
EAEREPEEERMEREERESN
EIE ANE4E A ¢ David Wyndham Edwards 564

B

BRI T EER %
BHRESBESR T2

&5 1 +852 2203 7872

fEH : +852 2203 7995

FEH : enquiry@rreefchinatrust.com

A4 © www.rreefchinatrust.com



RREEF China REIT Management Limited
Level 62, International Commerce Centre
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BETEERESERERAT
BENEALTEEA R

RYEZSESA T2

Tel B : +852 2203 7872

Fax H : +852 2203 7995

Email & : enquiry@rreefchinatrust.com

www.rreefchinatrust.com




	Cover
	Contents
	Glossary
	Key Highlights
	The Manager’s Report
	The Outlook
	Board of Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Connected Party Transactions
	Interests of Connected Persons in Units
	Trustee’s Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Balance Sheet
	Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders
	Distribution Statement
	Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Corporate Information
	Back Cover

